
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

24 August 2020

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Regulatory Board
DATE: 2 September 2020
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Virtual 
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

Paul Grant
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Chairman of the P and O Board (Councillor Hook (ex-Officio))
Councillor Mrs Huggins (Mayor) and Councillor Mrs Hook (Chairman)

Councillor Casey (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Bateman
Councillor Mrs Batty
Councillor Carter
Councillor Earle
Councillor Farr
Councillor Foster-Reed
Councillor Hammond

Councillor Herridge
Councillor Mrs Jones
Councillor Miss Kelly
Councillor Murphy
Councillor Scard
Councillor Westerby

Public Document Pack



FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Regulatory Board
2 September 2020

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

3.  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22 JULY 2020 

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Friday, 28 August 2020.  The total 
time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Friday, 
28th August 2020).

6.  LICENSING POLICY REVIEW 

The Council is required to determine and publish every 5 years a 
statement of licencing policy in relation to the exercise of its 
functions under the Licensing Act 2003.  The purpose of this report is 
to bring before the Licensing Board the draft reviewed Licensing 
Policy Consultation Document and to approve it for statutory 
consultation.

7.  REPORT OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGER 

Schedule of planning applications with recommendations.
(grey sheets pages 1-54)

8.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



This page is intentionally left blank



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE REGULATORY BOARD
WAS HELD ON 22 JULY 2020

Councillor Hook

Councillors Bateman, Beavis (Substituting for Mrs Jones), Carter, Casey, Chegwyn 
(Substituting for Foster-Reed), Mrs Cully (Substituting for Farr), Earle, Hammond, Herridge, 
Mrs Hook, Miss Kelly, Murphy, Scard and Westerby

1. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

Apologies for non attendance were received from Councillors Farr, Mrs Jones, Mrs Batty 
and Foster-Reed. 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Carter declared that he was the County Councillor for the ward in which the 
Addenbrooke proposal was located and that he had held extensive discussions with County 
Council Officers about the proposal. He advised that he would take no part in the voting 
thereon. 

Councillor Chegwyn advised that he was a County Councillor but had not been involved in 
discussions regarding the proposal and as a result would remain in the meeting. 

The Head of Planning and Regeneration declared a personal interest in 13 Clayhall Road 

3. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 3 JUNE 2020 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on the on 3rd June 2020 be signed as a 
true and correct record. 

4. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

Deputation were received on the following items: 
 Addenbrooke House 
 Land adjacent to Brookers Lane 
 1 Oxford Road 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none.

6. REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 

19/00166/FULL - DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND ERECTION OF A PART 
3 AND PART 4 STOREY BUILDING TO FORM 60NO. EXTRA CARE UNITS IN A MIX OF 
1 AND 2 BEDROOMS AND ASSOCIATED COMMUNITY FACILITIES, PARKING, 
REFUSE STORAGE, LANDSCAPING, DRAINAGE AND HIGHWAYS WORKS (as 
amended by supporting information and plans received 24.05.19, 26.06.19, 02.08.19, 
29.05.20.and 08.07.20)

Agenda Item 3



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

2

Addenbrooke House  Willis Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 1NA  

Councillor Carter left the meeting and took no part in the discussion or voting 
thereon. 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration requesting 
that consideration be given to planning application 19/00166/FULL. 

The Board was advised that there were two updates to the application. The Board was 
advised that since the publication of the agenda, Natural England had advised that they 
were satisfied with the proposed mitigation measures in relation to recreational disturbance 
nitrates and other impacts on the SPA . 

The Board was also advised that there was an additional update to condition 3 that there 
was an additional requirement for working hours to be provided. 

The Board was advised that there was a deputation from the applicant. This was read by 
the Borough Solicitor as follows: 

The site is wholly owned by Hampshire County Council and has been identified for redevelopment 
to deliver much needed extra care accommodation in relation to the County Council’s Older 
Persons’ Extra Care Programme. 

The scheme will be 100% affordable and occupants will be nominated by Gosport Borough Council 
from a waiting list held by them and the County Council of people with housing and care needs. 

Whilst the scheme will be open to over 55s, the over 75 population is a good indication of overall 
levels of need given that the average age of occupants of such facilities is over 75. The over 75 
population across Gosport Borough was 7,500 in 2015, and this is due to increase by 86% by 2035. 
To calculate need, the County Council has adopted an average demand of 20 units of extra care per 
1000 of the over 75 population. This points to a demand of 150 extra care units in 2015 rising to a 
need of 276 units in 2035. 

The current supply of Extra Care units in Gosport Borough, to which the County Council can 
nominate to, stands at 50 (one facility at Juniper Court). These figures are indicative of an under 
supply across the whole County and is not a criticism of Gosport Borough, but this scheme will 
provide much needed, modern extra care accommodation to help address this under supply. 

The applicant has undertaken extensive discussions with Officers regarding the design of the 
proposals and the scheme has been redesigned since the bid scheme so that the larger elements 
have been reoriented to be on the southern and eastern elevations, away from the existing 
sheltered accommodation to the north and west in Alec Rose House, Slocum House and Ramillies 
House. 

The building has been designed with a mix of features which add visual interest to the building and 
street scene. The proposed materials are a light brick for the majority of the building with a 
contrasting darker plinth to the full height of the ground floor on some elevations. The frontage to 
The Anchorage has substantial setbacks to break up the elevation and further recesses, brick 
projections and down pipes are proposed on both road frontages which further break up the 
building. Other design features include the use of materials, window positions, recessed brick 
panels and Juliette balconies which add further visual interest. 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

3

A significant amount of work has been undertaken to address the issue of nitrates in the Solent, 
which has directly involved Hampshire County Council. Natural England advises that proposals for 
new residential development should achieve nitrogen neutrality to avoid harm to designated sites. 
This includes a 20% precautionary buffer for robustness. 

The applicant has provided a scheme of mitigation measures relating to water saving measures in 
an existing care facility managed by Hampshire County Council (HCC), known as Hawthorne Court. 
This care facility discharges into the same water treatment works as the application site. 

The mitigation report sets out the existing water usage within both Addenbrooke House and 
Hawthorne Court and the level of water usage that the proposals would generate. The proposed 
mitigation measures in both properties would reduce the level of water usage and subsequent 
discharge of nitrates to a level that exceeds the Natural England guidance, including Natural 
England’s 20% precautionary buffer. The solution is therefore extremely robust and more than 
offsets nitrate levels by providing a betterment to the existing situation. The proposals include 
regular monitoring and these measures will be secured in perpetuity for both properties within the 
Section 106 legal agreement. Natural England has no objections to the scheme, which supersedes 
the consultation response contained in the committee report. 

There are no technical objections to the scheme or any objections from local residents and 
Members are therefore respectfully requested to approve the application in line with 
officer’s recommendation.

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that there the building would be designed 
to meet current building regulations including any energy saving measures, sound proofing and 
insulation. 

In answer to a Members question, the Board was advised that there was no figure listed for the 
amount of jobs the proposal would create, but advised that the skills plan would cover the number of 
construction jobs. 

The Board was advised that the proposal would contribute to housing numbers within the Borough. 

 In answer to a Members question the Board was advised that the proposals included a layby on 
Willis Road which would be used for the servicing of the proposal and that there would be a 
requirement for turning in Willis Road to access the layby and that  tracking plans had been 
provided by the applicant to show that the lay by is useable and accessible and that acceptance of 
this had been confirmed by Hampshire County Council Highways. 

Concern was expressed that the traffic management plan should be followed to protect 
neighbouring residents. 

It was also confirmed that the conditions of the application included a landscape scheme and that a 
desire for native species could be noted. 

Members welcomed the proposal and recognised the importance of development of the site 
and suggested that direct pedestrian access to the supermarket should be provided.

It was also recognised that the existing trees did have a value, but accepted that the 
landscaping would need amending as part of the proposal.  

The Board unanimously agreed the proposal



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

4

RESOLVED: That planning application 19/00166/FULL be approved subject to the 
conditions in the planning officer’s report. 

19/00240/VOC VARIATION OF CONDITIONS 2 (APPROVED PLANS), 5 (NOISE 
MITIGATION MEASURES) AND 6 (LOCATION OF PLANT AND EQUIPMENT) OF 
PLANNING PERMISSION 18/00237/FULL - CHANGE OF USE FROM CAR SALES TO 
CAR WASH, ERECTION OF SIDE EXTENSION, ERECTION OF CANOPIES TO FRONT 
OF EXISTING BUILDING AND ERECTION OF ACOUSTIC BARRIER - TO AMEND SIZE 
AND SITING OF CANOPY, SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION AND ACOUSTIC 
MITIGATION MEASURES (as amended by plans received 18.6.2019 and 1.6.2020)
Finsbury Cars  Privett Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2SU  

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration requesting 
that consideration be given to planning application 19/00240/VOC. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that condition in relation to the 
closure of access was carried forward but the timing on it was not due to the current 
situation. The original condition had set a condition that required details of the footway 
closure to be submitted and agreed and then implemented. The details had been received 
and agreed by the Highway Authority and arequirest made to Hampshire County Council for 
a  license to carry out  the work but because of recent events it had been difficult to meet 
timings with regard to the implementation of inspections which is why the timing element 
has been amended to secure the same works considered in the previous applications.

The Board was also advised that the site was formally a filling station with drainage to 
capture petrol spillage and that the system was still in place and functional. The applicant 
also confirmed that they had the relevant licenses in place to dispose of waste water, as a 
result no condition on this was required. There was a condition requiring the consideration 
of disposal of other waste materials used by the business. 

 In answer to a further question the Board was advised that the planning officer was content 
that the while canopies are  larger than originally proposed and in a  different location they  
are equally acceptable as an alternative to what was previously proposed. 

The Board was also advised that the business was required to have a commercial waste 
collection, and it was the responsibility of the contractor employed to remove the waste. 
The Council was able to ensure, when approving facilities that provision was made to have 
refuse and recycled storage facilities on site. 

It was acknowledge that two of the incidences where rubbish had been left on the site 
occurred when the site had been closed and that it was unlikely that the rubbish on site was 
left by the business, but it was important to ensure provision was made for disposal of 
waste.  



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

5

It was confirmed that there was 3 letters of objection to the current proposal, two of which 
were prior to the changes of the plant enclosure which addressed noise issues. 

The recommendation was unanimously agreed. 

RESOLVED: That planning application 19/00240/VOC be approved subject to the 
conditions inthe planning officer’s report.

19/00516/OUT - CROSS BOUNDARY OUTLINE APPLICATION, WITH ALL MATTERS 
RESERVED EXCEPT FOR ACCESS, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF UP TO 99 
RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS, LANDSCAPING, OPEN SPACE AND ASSOCIATED 
WORKS, WITH ACCESS FROM BROOKERS LANE [Gosport Borough Council to only 
determine part of the application relating to part of access in Gosport Borough] (as 
amplified by additional information received 03.03.20 and 14.05.20)
Land Adjacent Brookers Lane  Gosport  Hampshire      

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration requesting 
that consideration be given to planning application 19/00516/OUT.

The Board was advised that there were a number of updates to the report. 

One letter of support had been withdrawn and an additional letter of objection had been 
received raising concerns about the proximity of their recently constructed  access to the 
proposal. The Board was advised that planning officers had contact the Local Highway 
Authority who had confirmed that the dropped kerb did not affect the acceptability of the 
proposal. 

Members were advised that the drawings numbered 101 and 001 in the Local Highway 
Authority consultee comments were the same drawing.

An informative is recommended to clarify that the five displaced public car parking spaces 
referred to in condition 6 should be located in the area highlighted by image 2.1 of the 
applicant’s transport statement. 

The Head of Planning and Regeneration provided an update to the Board as follows: 

This is an extremely unusual proposal for the Council to consider. 

To be absolutely clear on the procedural perspective, this Council is only able to formally 
determine the element of the proposal that falls within its own administrative boundary, 
being the proposed access to the proposed development in this case. In some cases, 
where a proposed development does straddle an administrative boundary, the Councils can 
decide between them to pass responsibility for determining the proposal as a whole to one 
or the other.  The published report explains the above and then proceeds to focus on the 
impacts from the use and the proposed construction of the development located within 
GBC. 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

6

Mindful that the application proposal is for the development of 99 residential dwellings, in 
determining the element of the proposed development within Gosport Borough, a wider 
view could also be taken in terms of considering the principle of the development that the 
proposed access is intended to serve. The Council has commented before and repeatedly 
reinforced its position on possible residential development in this location and within the 
Strategic Gap generally and it could be considered reasonable that if the Council does not 
support the principle of development in the adjoining Borough it follows that it could also 
consider the proposed access to it unacceptable, in principle.  

Under the circumstances, I thought it appropriate to ensure that all interested parties were 
aware of this broader perspective and also the views expressed by the Council’s Head of 
Planning Policy, relevant extracts of which are set out below. These comments are 
displayed in full on the Council’s website and in my view are a material planning 
consideration in the determination of the application in relation to which Members are able 
to apportion whatever weight they feel appropriate:-

______________________________________________________________
Relevant Extracts of Comments from the Head of Planning Policy received 5 February 
2020.

Part 2 - The principle of the access serving up to 99 dwellings within Fareham Borough

In order for GBC to determine the element of the proposed development within Gosport 
Borough it is necessary to consider the principle of the development the access is intended 
to serve.  It is considered reasonable that if the Council does not support the principle of 
development in the adjoining Borough it follows that the proposed access to it is also not 
acceptable, in principle.  

The reasons that the development is not acceptable is based on the following fundamental 
positions previously set out by Gosport Borough Council:

A) The proposed development is contrary to Fareham Borough Council’s adopted Local 
Plan (Parts 1 and 2) for a number of reasons including that the development is outside the 
settlement boundary and is located within the Strategic Gap.

B) That no weight can be given to the Regulation 18 versions of the Draft Fareham 
Local Plan 2036 (DFLP) given the strength of objection to the proposed allocation HA2, of 
which this application site forms the south section. Consequently the issues arising from the 
outstanding objections to HA2 need to be considered as part of the forthcoming 
Examination in Public into the DFLP and in combination with other proposals within the 
existing Strategic Gap.

Importantly, as the application site is not identified as an allocation in the adopted Local 
Plan and is subject to a significant objection at the Regulation 18 stage of the forthcoming 
Local Plan, no certainty can be given to the arrangements set out in the application 
consequently this Council considers that the objection to the whole allocation is applicable 
when determining this application including the possibility of links to Newgate Lane from 
this application site.



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

7

These fundamental objections in principle are set out in detail below:

Principle A) The proposal is contrary to the adopted Fareham Local Plan on a number of 
key matters:

Outside of the urban area/settlement boundary 
The site comprises agricultural land and is located outside defined settlements within 
Fareham Borough.  CS14 of the adopted Fareham Local Plan (Part 1 Core Strategy) clearly 
states that built development on land outside the defined settlement will be strictly 
controlled to protect the countryside from development which would affect its landscape 
character, appearance and function.  

It is clear that this proposal will affect the landscape character, appearance and function of 
this area outside the existing defined settlement.

In terms of landscape and character Fareham Borough Council’s own latest evidence, 
Fareham Landscape Assessment (2017)  regarding the ‘Woodcot area’ which includes the 
land covered by the proposed Newgate Lane allocation, states, 

‘This is a cohesive area of undeveloped landscape which performs an important role in 
respect of the primary purposes of the Strategic Gap i.e. in defining the edges, separate 
identity and settings of Fareham and Gosport, preventing their coalescence. Even minor 
encroachment beyond existing settlement boundaries could have an adverse effect on 
these functions and the overall integrity of the landscape and Strategic Gap. It is 
recommended that the Gap boundaries remain unchanged.’  

Consequently this is also relevant for defining the settlement boundary in this location. In 
the light of the above the planning application is contrary to Policy CS14: Development 
Outside of Settlements.

Policy DSP6 of Part 2 of the Local Plan also presumes against new residential development 
outside of the defined urban boundary.  The only exceptions relate to very small scale 
levels of development of one or two dwellings as infill. This planning application is of a 
significant scale (99 dwellings) and therefore is contrary to Policy DSP6: New Residential 
Development Outside of the Defined Urban Settlement Boundary

Policy DSP40 relating to housing allocations, of which this site is not included, recognises 
that in certain circumstances where it can be demonstrated that the Council does not have 
a five year supply of housing, additional sites outside of the urban area boundary may be 
permitted where they meet all of the criteria set out.

Consequently whilst acknowledging that Fareham Borough may not currently have a five 
year land supply it is clear that this particular proposal does not meet all the criteria set out 
in Policy DSP40.

Firstly with regard to criterion ii) it states that the proposal should be sustainably located 
adjacent to, and well related to, the existing urban settlement boundaries and can be well 
integrated with the neighbouring settlement.  This proposal is not adjacent or well related to 
any development within the Fareham Local Plan.  It is detached from any other settlements 
within Fareham Borough.



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

8

Whilst recognising it is attached to Gosport Borough’s urban area boundary it is not 
explicitly stated that this policy relates to settlements outside of Fareham Borough’s 
jurisdiction and therefore it can only be taken to refer to settlements covered by the 
Fareham Local Plan and within its jurisdiction.

Whilst this may appear to be a matter of technical definition it is clear that if this was the 
intention of the Policy it should have been stated within the text and as part of the duty to 
cooperate discussions. 

Consequently it is reasonable to conclude that the settlement boundaries referred to in 
Policy DSP40 relate to those within Fareham Borough only and consequently given that this 
proposal is not adjacent these settlements it is therefore contrary to criterion ii)

Criterion iii) requires that proposals are sensitively designed to reflect the character of 
neighbouring settlement and to minimise the impact on Strategic Gaps.  It is clear that this 
proposed development would impact on the long standing objectives of the strategic gap 
between Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and Stubbington and significantly diminish 
its function as previously mentioned with regard to Policy CS14 and further highlighted 
below with regard to the Strategic Gap policy (CS22).

Criterion v requires that the site would not have any unacceptable environmental, amenity 
and traffic implications.  

There is significant concern that this planning proposal must be seen in the context of the 
larger proposed HA2 allocation, the number of existing speculative applications within the 
Strategic Gap and the potential Strategic Growth Area as outlined in the Supplement 
version of the latest Regulation 18 consultation.

As this site together with all the other sites have not been subject to an in-combination 
assessment it is impossible to fully understand the environmental, amenity and traffic 
implications regarding this proposal.  It is also important to stress that evidence that does 
exist has not been examined in public by a Local Plan Inspector in order to ascertain the 
environmental, amenity and traffic implications regarding this proposal and other related 
proposals in the existing Strategic Gap. This is imperative given the particular issues 
associated with the Gosport Peninsula including limited transport choices, significant out 
commuting and congestion, and air pollution issues.  This proposal should not be brought 
forward in isolation in advance of an in-combination assessment of the other sites in the 
strategic gap and the wider peninsula to ascertain impacts on traffic, air quality and other 
environmental considerations. Consequently it needs to be considered as part of a Local 
Plan Examination in Public.

Many of these issues are included in more detail under Principle B regarding GBC’s 
outstanding objection to the HA2 allocation. However there is significant concern that this 
application site will be linked via a vehicular access to the northern part of the allocation site 
with direct access onto Newgate Lane East.  This would negate the benefits of the 
proposed Newgate Lane improvements which have been implemented to address existing 
accessibility issues to, and from, the Gosport Peninsula rather than facilitate new 
development. 

Whilst recognising that the plans do not currently show a link to the northern part of this 
allocation, as there is no adopted policy in place these arrangements could easily be 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

9

altered. Such amendments would be completely outside the control of Gosport Borough 
Council despite the fact that the Gosport community would be most affected by a 
detrimental impact on the effectiveness of Newgate Lane.  Consequently as there is no 
adopted policy position in place this makes these concerns a material consideration to this 
particular planning application. 

In the light of the point raised above the proposal is therefore contrary to criteria ii), iii) and 
v) of Policy DSP40: Housing Allocation.

Policy DSP7 relates to affordable housing exception sites.  This proposal includes 100% 
affordable housing and criterion ii) states that such development outside settlement 
boundaries should be of a small scale.  99 dwellings is not considered small scale.  The 
policy also refers to being well related to existing urban settlement boundaries (criterion ii) 
and minimising adverse impact on the countryside and if relevant, strategic gaps (criterion 
iii).  As stated above this is not considered the case in this instance. The proposal is 
therefore contrary to criteria ii) and iii) of Policy DSP7: Affordable Housing Exception Sites.

Within the Strategic Gap

As introduced above the planning application is contrary to the existing Fareham Local Plan 
with regard to its policy concerning the Strategic Gap.

This proposal is within the existing strategic gap as defined by the Fareham Local Plan. The 
Strategic Gap separates the settlements of Fareham, Gosport, Stubbington and Lee-on-
the-Solent and the planning application is therefore contrary to the Fareham Core Strategy. 

Policy CS22, “Development in Strategic Gaps” states that, ‘development proposals will not 
be permitted either individually or cumulatively where it significantly affects the integrity of 
the gap and the physical and visual separation of the settlements’. 

The Policy recognises that maintaining separation will prevent coalescence of the 
settlements in this densely settled part of South Hampshire. The justification text states that 
gaps between settlements help define and maintain the separate identity of individual 
settlements and have strong local support. It adds that Strategic Gaps do not necessarily 
have intrinsic landscape value but are important in maintaining the settlement pattern, 
keeping individual settlements separate and providing opportunities for green 
infrastructure/green corridors. It acknowledges that continuing pressure for high levels of 
development mean that maintaining gaps continues to be justified.

The current boundary has been supported by a Planning Inspector as recently as May 
2015.  In his report into the Examination in Public for the Fareham Local Plan Part 2, the 
Inspector refers to FBC’s evidence regarding the review of Strategic Gaps and states,  

‘although the review did not specifically take into account the route of the Stubbington by-
pass and the Newgate Lane improvements, there is no reason to conclude that these 
proposals would justify altering the boundary of the gap in those locations. Having visited 
the area I agree with the Council that the gap between Fareham and Stubbington is justified 
in order to retain visual separation and that the proposed road improvements would not 
justify a revision to the boundary. The Council’s approach is sound.’ 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

10

This proposal by its sheer scale and location will undoubtedly harm the integrity of the gap 
and will diminish the physical and visual separation of the settlements.  It is clearly contrary 
to Policy CS22

Prioritisation for brownfield land within the defined urban area boundary
The proposal is also contrary to Policy CS6- the Development Strategy, which states that 
development will prioritise the re-use of previously developed land within the defined urban 
area boundaries.  This site is a greenfield site outside of the urban area. This proposal is 
therefore contrary to the Council’s long term development strategy.  Similarly CS11- 
Development in Portchester, Stubbington and Hillhead, and Titchfield states that small 
scale development will be permitted within their respective settlement boundaries.  This 
proposal is not small scale nor within the settlement boundary of Stubbington. 

Principle B) No status should be given to the current Regulation 18 versions of the 
emerging Draft Fareham Local Plan 2036 when determining this planning application given 
the significant objections which remain to the HA2 allocation

The applicant places significant emphasis that this site is identified as an allocation in the 
emerging Draft Fareham Local Plan 2036 (DFLP), in which this site has been identified as 
part of a proposed allocation known as HA2 in FBC’s first and subsequent Regulation 18 
Consultation documents.

However this Council considers that no weight should be given to these Regulation 18 
documents in determining the planning application given the early stage in preparation and 
the strength of opposition from organisations such as Gosport Borough Council and 
Hampshire County Council relating to the HA2 allocation.

In this regard it is considered necessary to outline Gosport Borough Council objections to 
this proposed allocation as it is considered material when determining this application. 
Some elements of the objection are similar to those highlighted above regarding the current 
Local Plan but necessary to re-emphasise as these parts relate to the reasons why no 
weight should be given to the emerging DFLP2036

The Council’s key concerns to the HA2 allocation are as follows:

• That this Council strongly objects to the proposed residential allocation at Newgate 
Lane (HA2) for the reasons summarised below:
- The proposal would physically and visually diminish the long-established Strategic 
Gap between Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and Stubbington. This is contrary to;
• the objectives of the long-established sub-regional policy in South Hampshire to 
protect important gaps between settlements. 
• FBC’s own evidence, submitted at its own Local Plan Examination in Public as 
recently as 2015 which defends the gap at this particular location.
• the Planning Inspector findings in 2015 
• FBC’s own Landscape Assessment (2017)
• its own Sustainability Appraisal which highlights that that Newgate Lane allocation is 
less sustainably located than other allocations in the DFLP.
- The proposal has the potential to negate the benefits being provided by the new 
improvements to Newgate Lane with a negative impact on traffic flow and increased 
congestion to the detriment of Gosport residents and the local economy including 
accessibility to the Solent Enterprise Zone at Daedalus;



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

11

- The proposal has the potential to significantly harm the amenities of local Gosport 
residents with the introduction of new access points to existing residential areas, which due 
to the scale of the proposal would potentially lead to a significant increase of traffic on 
residential roads;
- The proposal, as described, is very car dependent with no provision for public 
transport.  This would exacerbate the amount of trips using Newgate Lane;
- Any additional traffic on Newgate Lane is likely to have an impact on the Air Quality 
Management Area (AQMA) at the north end of Newgate Lane and Gosport Road and this 
may be difficult to mitigate given the scale of the allocation and  limited public transport 
choice;
- There is insufficient information on supporting infrastructure required including 
education, medical and community facilities;
- There is no provision in the policy to protect the amenities of existing residents in the 
vicinity.

[NB- Each of the these reasons are then set out in detail in the original submission- some of 
which emphasise points made in relation to Principle A where they are relevant to the 
proposed HA2 allocation- Please see original submission for further details] 

Conclusion

It is recognised that the case of prematurity when considering a proposal in advance of a 
Local Plan being adopted is less significant than in the past due to the provisions of the 
Five Year Housing Supply and the Housing Delivery Test.  However it is considered that 
this application should not be permitted in advance of the forthcoming Local Plan 2036 as 
this site  together with the remainder of the proposed HA2 allocation, other potential 
development areas in the Strategic Gap and speculative developments that have not yet 
been determined (or could potentially be subject to appeal) are of such significance in terms 
of scale and impact on the entire Gosport Peninsula.  Consequently it is not considered that 
it would represent the principles of ‘good growth’, as advocated by Fareham Borough 
Council, to permit this development without understanding the in-combination impacts and 
that this should be addressed as part of the Local Plan process.

If HA2 remains in the DFLP, Gosport Borough Council would like the opportunity to appear 
at FBCs Local Plan ‘Examination in Public’ to address its fundamental concerns regarding 
the various residential proposals that are significantly encroaching on the long-established 
strategic gap between the four settlements.

Therefore all the matters outlined above:  environmental and landscape implications traffic 
congestion, air pollution and other identified issues need to be considered as a whole as 
part of a wider development strategy including as part of ongoing work by the Partnership 
for South Hampshire.  

The development of so many sites on a piecemeal basis has significant implications for 
transport to, and from, the Peninsula resulting in increased congestion with limited transport 
choices as well as implications for air quality including Fareham’s existing Air Quality 
Management Areas.

The proposal for 99 dwellings should be refused in principle as it is contrary to the Fareham 
Borough adopted Local Plan  and that no weight should be given to the proposed allocation 
in the emerging Draft Fareham Local Plan 2036 given the strength of opposition to this 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

12

allocation including by Gosport Borough Council and Hampshire County Council. GBC’s 
outstanding objection relates to the need to protect the effectiveness of the Newgate Lane 
transport corridor to, and from, the Gosport Peninsula and the principle of safeguarding the 
function of the Strategic Gap itself to prevent coalescence and maintain the visual 
separation between settlements. There are also outstanding concerns regarding the impact 
of traffic on the adjoining Gosport residential areas and the capacity of local community 
facilities to accommodate this development.

A deputation was received from Mr Wilkinson Chairman on behalf of the Peel Common and 
Lee on Solent Residents Associations and read out by the Borough Solicitor as follows. 

To residents of Gosport it seems incredulous that its elected Councillors would be guided to 
approve an application that will subject its own voting support to increased traffic misery. 
Traffic measure monitoring was not adequate. It was based on the developers limited assessment  
and pin points Brookers Lane Road as the source of vehicle impact, based on traffic moving east on 
Brookers Lane Road towards Tukes Avenue and  Carisbrooke Road. 
The planning authorities and developer have not fully accounted for the present day commuters 
Peak Traffic journeys through the Peel Common Estate. 

 The Peel Common roundabout is now the hub of all journeys. It gives an improved exit out of 
Gosport. It provides faster easier access to Fareham, the Enterprise Zone and journeys West. The 
new Stubbington bypass  will cement even more the current route of peak time traffic. 
The evening peak traffic access route to the 99 homes will by default be The Drive. The evening 
rush hour traffic is normally stacked up on the B3334 (Rowner Road) starting at The Drive turn in 
point. Due to stationary traffic  The Drive will be the route taken by  new vehicles and it will most 
certainly take the full brunt of the increase in vehicle movements.

 The Drive has 2 schools along its route and  though the traffic density is greatest at the 
school run time, out of school hours activities do occur. There are also 8 driveways connected to 
this road servicing approximately 100 properties. 

 The static traffic causing road congestion on Peel common is not taken into consideration. A 
count of the cars parked along the short stretch of The Drive close to the peak traffic time, 
numbered 39. A count of the cars on the short stretch of Brookers Lane Road numbered 27. At 
times it is difficult to drive around The Curve and through The Parkway with the number of parked 
cars and commercial vehicles.

 Other considerations ignored are enforcement of safeguarding options.  Extra vehicles 
require extra effort on enforcement of traffic regulations. The Drive suffers greatly from Rat Run 
drivers who wish to avoid the Carisbrooke traffic lights whilst on a journey to Bridgemary. There is 
also the continuing flouting of  the No Right Turn when leaving The Drive. 

 The acceptance of the Brookers Lane Road access has been agreed by Gosport and 
Hampshire planners using what can only be called a blind eye agreement that the proposal would 
not have an unacceptable impact on the neighbouring communities or the Peel Common Residents. 

 Bargate Homes preferred option was to use the Newgate Lane East road for access but 
were denied this  preference by LHA on the grounds of the (debateable) need to prevent direct 
access onto this road.
The traffic assessment on Brookers Lane Road concluded that there would be a minimal traffic 
impact.
Quote:– 1 additional vehicle every 5 minutes. 
The figure was accepted in principle by both planning authorities, LHA and Gosport. This is a totally 
unrealistic irrational figure and fits in well with the irrational decision to open up the Brookers Lane 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

13

Road to through traffic. It also begs the question, with such a small impact why in the first place 
deny the use of the access for the 99 proposed homes from Newgate Lane East road? 

 The board must also accept that if this application is granted it will provide access to more 
developments in the strategic gap. This invalidates most of the developers supporting papers 
addressing the impact of just 99 homes.  At some stage, with another planned 376 homes to be 
built, sensible access routes will have to feature in the planning of future dwellings. Even the 
uncompromising LHA must be aware that you cannot filter another 475 house holding vehicles 
through the Peel Common estate.  

 It is inevitable the figure in practice will be almost 600 new homes, and if approved is 
likely to condemn many of the citizens of the peninsula to significant traffic nightmare and 
financial penalty.
 It is our opinion that the access route for the  building of the controversial plans for 
new houses is a compromise pushed along by a clever and often devious developer. 
Planning authorities have been outmanoeuvred and have been forced to accept the 
unacceptable.
The Peel Common and Lee on the Solent Residents Associations respectfully submit that 
the board refuse the application to use the Brookers Lane Road as the means of access to 
the proposed 99 new homes.

A deputation was received was received from the Trevor Moody, supporting the proposal, 
read out by the Borough Solicitor as follows:  

Good evening Members. My name is Trevor Moody from WYG and I represent Bargate
Homes as their planning consultant. Thank you for allowing us to make this written
deputation in support of this cross-boundary application.

Bargate Homes is a local housing developer which was acquired by VIVID last year. VIVID 
is the largest housing association in Hampshire, and it has an objective to deliver 17,000 
homes in the next 10 years. Bargate Homes is a small but important part of that, and under 
VIVID’s ownership it can deliver the application scheme regardless of housing market 
conditions.

Together Bargate Homes and VIVID share a sense of duty to give back to the communities 
in which they develop and genuinely leave a positive legacy for future generations.

Over the last year, we have worked with officers and key stakeholders, including the local 
community, to develop carefully considered proposals for up to 99 affordable dwellings and 
open space. There is a pressing need for more affordable homes in both Gosport and 
Fareham boroughs with over 1,000 households in each borough on the housing waiting list.

This proposal will deliver not only affordable and social rented accommodation but also 
shared ownership homes thereby helping to create a balanced community and making a 
significant positive contribution to affordable housing needs in the local area.

As set out in your Officer’s Report, because the vast majority of the site is located within 
Fareham Borough, the issues before you for consideration this evening are limited to those 
associated with the construction and future use of the site access within Gosport Borough. 
At your Officer’s request, the description of development was amended to make this explicit 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

14

by adding the wording “Gosport Borough Council to only determine part of the application 
relating to part of access in Gosport Borough”.

We have undertaken extensive consultation with the Local Highway Authority and amended 
the access design and off-site highway works in response to their comments. The Highway 
Authority has carefully considered the proposals and are satisfied that the access is safe 
and has raised no objection.

The site access takes the form of an extension of Brookers Lane into the proposed site and 
has been designed to comply with the Manual for Streets and Hampshire County Council 
design standards. An independent Road Safety Audit has been carried out, with all matters 
raised addressed in the final design. The design has been the subject to detailed discussion 
with various specialist officers at the Local Highway Authority and represents an agreed 
form.

With regards to the existing Prohibition of Driving TRO at Brookers Lane, this will need to 
be amended to allow motorised vehicles to use an area where driving is currently 
prohibited.
However, the proposed alterations to the footway and cycleway in this area have been
carefully assessed by the Local Highway Authority who have stated that “The Prohibition of 
Driving TRO was implemented to ensure provision of a high quality pedestrian and cycle 
link from Brookers Lane, across Newgate Lane East to Woodcote Lane. The previous site 
access comments have been satisfactorily addressed as set out above, and it is considered 
that safe and convenient travel by foot and bicycle will be provided.”

The applicant is agreeable to entering into a S106 Agreement to ensure completion of the 
required amendment to the Prohibition of Driving TRO prior to commencement of
development.

The Local Highway Authority has considered the traffic flows and impacts on the
wider highway network and has not raised any objection to the proposals on this
basis.

It is noted that 58 letters of support have been received commenting, in particular, on the 
need for affordable housing in the area and the sustainable location of the site. The wider 
proposals will also provide a package of off-site highway improvements including the 
widening and upgrading of pedestrian and cycle links to schools and facilities, as well as 
financial contributions to local schools. The construction of 99 homes will create jobs in the 
construction and associated industries and will result in an increase in household 
expenditure thus boosting the local economy in a time of need, when other developments 
may have been delayed are no longer proceeding.

The Officer’s Report, supplemented by the update paper circulated earlier today, has set 
out that, notwithstanding these benefits, Gosport Borough Council has objected to the 
planning application for the residential development itself, to be determined by Fareham 
Borough

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that that the letters of support 
were referred to in the report of the planning officer. It was confirmed that the majority of the 
letters were from Gosport and Fareham residents. 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

15

It was confirmed that any highway and education contributions would go to the County 
Council and that some of the facilities would be in the Borough and managed by the County 
Council. It was confirmed that matters relating to the Community Infrastructure Levy would 
be related to the housing floor space and therefore located within Fareham Borough. 

It was further clarified that the majority of the letters of support were a tick box return 
generated by a PR company to generate support for the application and that officers were 
aware that the letters had been sent to both Fareham and Gosport Council’s.

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the proposal was for the 
Highway to be adopted and that would need to be agreed with Hampshire County Council 
as the Highway authority. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Planning Officer confirmed that very few of the 
letters of support acknowledged the access. Members reiterated that this was the matter for 
consideration, not the proposal for houses. The 47 proformas submitted did not concern the 
access. 

It was also confirmed that the letter of support that was withdrawn was one of the 
proformas.

A Member advised that there was a leaflet provided by the applicant that stated that the 
proposal was on a site allocated for housing in the emerging local plan, not in the strategic 
gap it was designated in in their current local plan, where building properties was not 
acceptable. Members expressed concern that such an immature local plan was being used 
as the basis of the application.

The Board was advised that as Fareham Borough Council would be the decision maker on 
the houses, it would be for them to decide how much weight to give to emerging local plan 
and that although it was legislated that they give great weight to their existing plan, it was 
for them to determine the weight given to the new one. 

Councillor Philpott, Ward Councillor for Peel Common addressed the Board as follows:

Thank you for allowing me to address the meeting.
This is an unusual planning application.  In any other circumstances it would be part of one 
single application and the only reason it isn’t is because the two applications (P/19/1260 
and 19/00516) straddle the borough boundary.
The report makes reference to this Council’s standing objection to P/19/1260, so it would be 
useful to contextualise what it is you are being asked to consider.
In October 2017 Fareham Borough Council published their initial Draft Local Plan which 
included Housing Allocation 2 (known as HA2).  When the Draft Local Plan re-emerged in 
June last year following the “tearing up” of the first, HA2 remained included and unchanged.

HA2 is a swathe of land east of Newgate Lane East on our western boundary.  It stretches 
from Meadow Walk in the north to Brookers Field in the south and is part of the Strategic 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

16

Gap.  These two applications represent the first of a number of applications we can expect 
on HA2.  Fareham Council’s emerging Draft Local Plan envisages that 475 houses will 
eventually be built on HA2 with vehicular access for probably all of them through residential 
roads in my Bridgemary County Division.
It is worth reminding ourselves how we arrived at the position we are in today, ie being 
asked to facilitate the development of a Fareham housing estate.
On 6 December 2017 this Board met to consider its position on Fareham’s Draft Local Plan 
of which HA2 was a central concern.  The Board recommended,

“That this Council objects to the proposed residential allocation at Newgate Lane 
(because) the proposal has the potential to significantly harm the amenities of local Gosport 
residents with the introduction of new access points to existing residential areas, which due 
to the scale of the proposal would potentially lead to a significant increase of traffic on 
residential roads.”
When planning application P/19/1260 to Fareham Council came forward for 99 residential 
dwellings in the Strategic Gap, this Board was asked for its comments.  On 26 February 
2020 this Board voted to “raise objection in the strongest possible terms”.
The Board agreed with the Planning Officer that the application for 99 dwellings was 
contrary to a number of Fareham’s planning policies – in particular Policy CS22, protecting 
Strategic Gaps.
The Planning Officer’s report before you today explains that approximately 730 square 
metres of what he describes as “the application site” is within the Borough of Gosport.  In 
paragraph 1 he says, 

“Part of the site falls within the urban area boundary and part falls within the 
Strategic Gap as defined by the Gosport Borough Local Plan”.
Fareham is not the only council to have a policy on Strategic Gaps.  Gosport Borough 
Council’s Local Plan Policy LP3 says,
“THE CHARACTER AND FUNCTION OF THE SETTLEMENT GAPS BETWEEN 
GOSPORT/FAREHAM AND LEE-ON-THE-SOLENT/STUBBINGTON WILL BE 
PRESERVED.”    
As the function of this proposed access is to facilitate housing development, and because 
land under consideration is in the Strategic Gap, this application is, therefore, contrary to 
Policy LP3 (10).
I contend that it is not possible to see these two applications (P/19/1260 and 19/00516) in 
isolation.  And I am not alone in that opinion.
In the first paragraph of his report to you the Planning Officer appears to regard this as one 
single application site:

“The majority of the application site is located within the boundary of Fareham 
Borough Council with an area of approximately 730 square metres falling within the 
Borough of Gosport.”
The Applicants – Bargate Homes and VIVID – agree.  In their glossy brochure sent to all 
Gosport councillors they say,

“The key benefits include:
 100% affordable housing scheme with a total of 99 homes
 Mixture of sizes and tenures
 A new play area”

And they go on to describe it as a “cross-boundary application”.  So, clearly Bargate Homes 
also see this as a single application site. 
In his email to Gosport Planners dated 29 April 2020 Hampshire County Council’s Principal 
Transport Engineer wrote:

“The applicant has submitted two planning applications.  The Highway Authority will 
consider the site as a whole”.



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

17

So, Hampshire Highways also agree that this is one single application site. 
The overwhelming majority of public responses - including the questionnaires from Bargate 
Homes that appear to be offering respondents a brand new house if they tick the right box – 
speak only of the housing.  These questionnaires have been accepted by our Planning 
Officer as letters in support for the application before you this evening.  So clearly they also 
regard the application site and the proposals as one single application. 
In their response Hampshire Constabulary wrote about 

“the proposed development will bring more people to this end of Brookers Lane”.
Remember, Hampshire Constabulary were responding to the planning application before 
you this evening, but obviously aware of the other aspect of this application, they too 
consider this to be one single application site. 
In responding to Gosport Planning Officers and to this planning application Hampshire Fire 
& Rescue Service said,

“HFRS understands that the project involves development of 99 dwellings and 
associated works”.
So, Hampshire Fire and Rescue join the others in believing this to be one single application 
site. 
All these respondents – statutory and public – see these two planning applications as 
indivisible, including the Applicant!  In fact just about everybody does.
The application for access is not an application for a road to nowhere.  It is an application 
for access to a housing estate on the Strategic Gap to which your Committee has already 
lodged an objection.  If you oppose the housing then you must also oppose the access.
At the meeting on 26 February 2020 this Board heard that HA2 is part of Fareham Council’s 
emerging Draft Local Plan.  In their glossy literature the Applicant seeks to make a lot out of 
this.  This Draft Local Plan is only at the very early consultation stage and, as such, no 
weight should be given to it.  This is an important point because in February it was reported 
to this Board that

“the proposal for 99 houses should not be brought forward in isolation in advance of 
an in-combination assessment of other sites in the Strategic Gap,” and that “it needs to be 
considered as part of a Local Plan Examination in Public.”     
What is being proposed seeks to exploit existing facilities and services within the Borough 
of Gosport.  The Applicant is quite open about that.  And for that matter, so is Fareham 
Borough Council in its Draft Local Plan documents.  Yet, not once has the Applicant 
approached Gosport’s Planning Officers to discuss any kind of contribution to this Council.  
Even though the housing would be in Fareham, the overwhelming majority of services they 
would use are in Gosport, so this application must be considered to be contrary to Policy 
LP32.
Equally, Gosport’s Local Plan refers to developments of more than 50 dwellings and 
provision of open space.  The provision of off-site open space is that a contribution is 
secured through Section 106 Agreement.  Our Local Plan says that the contribution should 
reflect the impact the development has on existing green infrastructure – all of which, so far 
as the application site is concerned, is in the Borough of Gosport.  I contend, therefore, that 
this application seeks to facilitate development without contribution, or even an offer of a 
contribution, so is therefore contrary to Policy LP34.
The Applicant has said that there is no issue with nitrates associated with this application.  I 
would suggest that this debate has yet to run its course and that the Developer will need to 
demonstrate that their proposals return the internationally protected habitats of the Solent to 
a favourable condition.  From this perspective it is arguable that this application may not 
meet the requirements of Policy LP42.



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

18

In their deliberations members may wish to question whether a pinch-point access to 99 
houses in what the Police describe as a “leaky” cul-de-sac is acceptable and whether the 
narrow access solution being offered satisfies Policies LP22 and LP23.
IN SUMMARY

1. This application is contrary to Policy LP3 on Strategic Gaps, as well as being at odds 
with PfSH’s Spatial Position Statement that seeks to maintain countryside Gaps 
between settlements.

2. It is premature to consider either the access or the housing at this time because HA2 
is part of Fareham’s emerging Local Plan which is still at Regulation 18 consultation 
stage.  These matters should be considered as part of the Local Plan Examination in 
Public.  If you take this view it would be consistent with the recommendations 
approved by this Board in February.

3. This application is contrary to Policy LP32 which says, “NEW RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS WILL NEED TO CONTRIBUTE TOWARDS 
PROVIDING HIGH QUALITY AND ACCESSIBLE COMMUNITY, CULTURAL AND 
BUILT LEISURE FACILITIES.”  It should not be a matter of where the development 
is, but whom it impacts.

4. Similarly, the application would also be contrary to Policy LP34 because the existing 
green infrastructure impacted is in the Borough of Gosport.

Finally, I request members ask themselves whether these two applications are divisible, or 
like the Applicant, the statutory consultees and the public respondents, they believe them to 
be two sides of the same coin.        

Members welcomed the deputations and felt that it was not Gosport Borough Council’s duty 
to provide access to a Fareham development, and that it should be resolved within the 
Borough of Fareham. 

Members accepted there was a need for affordable homes but felt that it was inappropriate 
for them to be delivered in the strategic gap. 

Members thanked the planning officers for their work and acknowledged that it had 
generated a large level of interest they also highlighted that it had generated a large 
amount of enquiries from members of the public and none of them had been in favour of the 
proposal. 

Members reiterated that the proposal was for properties on the strategic gap and that the 
gap had a vital function that should be protected and that the proposed changes to the 
highway would bring damage to the strategic gap and the use of it. 

It was formally proposed that the application be rejected based on the breaches of the 
Gosport Local Plan but also breaches of the Fareham Borough Council Local Plan including 
CS14, DSP6, DSP40 and CS22. 

Members reiterated that strategic gaps were in place to allow people to retain their own 
identity and to ensure that ensure that settlements did not collide. Gosport Council had 
previously objected to the HA2 proposals and also to the building of properties in the 
strategic gap. 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

19

Members recognised that when they propose to reject a proposal it should be done on 
Gosport’s Policies and that it was Fareham Borough Council’s responsibility to determine 
applications based on theirs.

Members reiterated their objection as it was contrary to Gosport Policies LP3, preservation 
of the strategic gap, LP32 the need to contribute to high quality facilities and LP34 the 
green impact on Gosport and that any objection should be made on these grounds. 

Members welcomed the update from the Head of Planning and Regeneration  

Members reiterated that the proposal should be considered as a whole and acknowledged 
that all Members of the Board supported the provision of affordable homes, but not within 
the strategic gap. 

Members felt that a single entry point to such developments would create rat runs and 
congestion, as well as pollution. 

The Head of Planning and Regeneration advised the Board that procedurally the Board 
were only determining the part of the application in Gosport, which was the access and that 
as a result the Board were not able to consider the impacts of the separate housing 
proposal as that was within Fareham Borough Council land. It was accepted that it was 
difficult to divorce the access from the principle of the access it was proposed to serve and 
therefore the Council could consider the principle of the access. 

Gosport Borough Council were considering the material planning considerations around the 
construction of the access, Fareham Borough Council would consider the element of the 
proposal that proposed the housing and that it was acknowledged that the Council had 
already responded to Fareham Borough Council on the proposed development within the 
strategic gap but because consideration was only being given to the element proposed in 
Gosport, Fareham Borough Council Policies should not be considered. 

It was summarised that the principle of the proposed development was unacceptable, as 
set out in previous consultation responses to Fareham Borough Council and this is 
considered to be an overriding material consideration, not overcome by the potential 
reasons for approving the construction and use of the access, in isolation.

Members acknowledged that it was an unusual application and that it was difficult to be 
asked to consider this after already opposing development in the strategic gap. 

It was confirmed that the Fareham Borough Council policies of the proposed reasons for 
refusal were to be removed and that the refusal was for reasons LP3, LP32, LP34, LP23 
and LP22 of the Gosport Borough Council Local Plan. 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

20

Members were advised to consider whether the policies were relevant to the access as it 
was felt that their proposal to reject the application was on a wider matter than the polices 
covered. 

Members felt that in line with previous objections to the proposed development that 
objections should be made in the strongest possible way, following planning officer’s 
guidance.

It was agreed that the wording of the proposed rejection be amended to remove reference 
to the policies of the Gosport Borough Council Local Plan and that this was in itself unusual.

The Board was also advised that from a legal perspective, that as a planning authority 
applications should be determined in accordance with the development plan unless there 
were material considerations that would indicate otherwise and that this was an example of 
that being relevant. 

It was proposed and seconded that the proposal be refused for the following reason: 

That the principle of the proposed development was unacceptable, as set out in previous 
consultation responses to Fareham Borough Council and this is considered to be an 
overriding material consideration, not overcome by the potential reasons for approving the 
construction and use of the access, in isolation.

This was unanimously agreed by the Board 

RESOLVED: That planning application 19/00516/OUT be refused for the following reason:.
The principle of the proposed development is unacceptable as set out in previous 
consultation responses on the Regulation 18: Draft Fareham Local Plan 2036  (08.12.17); 
Issues and Options (25.07.19); Supplement (28.02.20) and planning application ref 
P/19/1260 (27.02.20), to Fareham Borough Council and this is considered to be an 
overriding material consideration not overcome by the potential reasons for approving the 
construction and use of the access in isolation.

20/00104/FULL - ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION AND SINGLE 
STOREY REAR CONSERVATORY 
1 Oxford Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 3LP    

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration requesting 
that consideration be given to planning application 20/00104/FULL 

The Board was updated that the description of the development needed amending as the 
conservatory detailed sat away from the common boundary not adjacent to it as described. 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

21

A deputation was received from Miss Hamilton and Mr Jones and read out by the Borough 
Solicitor as follows: 

Firstly we would like to state that there are many details in this report which are incorrect. 
These are:-

The Site and the Proposal

a. In paragraph 1, the garden is not enclosed by 1.8 meter high fencing. A site visit was 
made to establish the height so we don’t know why this is incorrect. The first 5.6 
metres of the fence is 1.68 metres high, it then becomes 1.4 metres high for the rest 
of the garden. 

b. In paragraph 2 the existing conservatory is not adjacent to the common boundary as 
stated. It is actually built to the south side of the rear garden. This can clearly be 
seen on the plans.

c. States the height of the new conservatory flat roof is 2.5 metres, on the submitted 
plans it is 2.55 metres.

d. The roof lantern dimensions were not on the submitted plans.  This new information, 
that we were not able to consider, now takes the maximum roof height to 3.2 meters. 

Principal Issues

a. Paragraph 3 states the combined extension and conservatory would be 2.5 metres 
further along the common boundary. This is wrong because at present there is 
nothing at all built on the common boundary. 

b. To compare the height of the existing conservatory and new extension when the 
existing conservatory is nowhere near our common boundary is ridiculous.

Response to Public Advertisement

a. In our objection letter we also raised issues of overlooking and mass, these 
haven’t been included in this report.

Prior to the building of this extension and conservatory and as mentioned in our original 
objection, Mr and Mrs Richards are also building a very large development along another 
5.8 metres of the same common boundary, making 11 metres of buildings on the 13 metres 
of our south facing boundary, blocking in most of the garden with a huge mass, seriously 
changing the appearance of the area and enjoyment of our property considering our garden 
in only approximately 4 metres wide. 

So in fact we will have gone from no building on the common boundary at all, to 11 metres 
of buildings.



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

22

The new height of the proposed extension will cause more overshadowing than expected 
and the proposed conservatory will be a significant mass a few feet from our backdoor and 
main sitting area, blocking light into the kitchen and dining room particularly in the shorter 
daylight months.

We have enjoyed 25 years of all year sunshine across our common boundary. 

We fail to see how any credible decision can be reached with so much information factually 
incorrect.

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the objection was from 3 
Oxford Road, the neighbouring property. 

The Board was advised that the planning officer confirmed the height of the boundary fence 
was 1.8 metres and that the plans submitted were to scale and partially dimensioned and 
acceptable. The proposal was for an extension across the width of the existing property 
with the conservatory proposed for the end of it, along the common boundary, giving it an L 
shape. The Board was advised that the depth of the extension was broadly the same depth 
as the conservatory on the neighbouring property and that the proposed conservatory 
would sit beyond that. 

The Board was advised that there was no outbuilding in the proposal and that it was 
believed that the applicant had aspirations to build one in the future, however there was no 
indication what that was at this time. If it was proposed that the building be attached to the 
main building then it would require planning permission. 

Members expressed concern that although the proposal was not deemed to have 
significant impact on the neighbours, it would have an impact and that it should be 
considered that the loss of light be an impact on the amenity of the neighbours. 

Members felt that a site visit to view the proposed site would be appropriate but were 
unsure if this could be achieved in the current environment. The Borough Solicitor 
confirmed that it would be acceptable should a site visit be the wish of the Members. 

It was proposed and seconded that the application be deferred for a site visit. 

RESOVED: That planning application 20/00104/FULL be deferred for a site visit. 

20/00159/FULL - ERECTION OF SIDE PORCH AND INSTALLATION OF FIRST FLOOR 
REAR ROOF TERRACE INCLUDING BALUSTRADE (RESUBMISSION OF 
19/00371/FULL) 
23 The Parkway  Gosport  Hampshire  PO13 0PT    

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration requesting 
that consideration be given to planning application 20/00159/FULL. 

The Board unanimously agreed the recommendation. 



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

23

RESOLVED: That planning application 20/00159/FULL be approved subject to the 
conditions in the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration. 

20/00211/FULL - ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 
(CONSERVATION AREA)
13 Clayhall Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2BB    

The Head of Planning and Regeneration left the meeting. 

Consideration was given to a report requesting that consideration be given to planning 
application 20/00211/FULL. 

The Board unanimously agreed the recommendation 

RESOVLED: That planning application 20/00211/FULL be approved, subject to the 
conditions in the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration. 

7. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

The Board was advised that in when the Councils  response to the planning application in 
Fareham for houses located adjacent to Newgate Lane, which the Council commented on 
in February, there was a discussion by the Board about the Direction the National Planning 
Casework unit then had in place with regard to two other applications in Fareham. At the 
time the Board agreed that it would be appropriate for the planning officers to alert the 
National Planning Casework unit to the existence of the application being considered on the 
basis of similar strategic issues applying to it. 

The other two planning applications were now under appeal on the basis of non-
determination and as such the National Planning Casework Unit have advised the Council 
that the Directions that they had issued no longer applied. The Secretary of State would still 
have call in powers but under different legislation as it was now an appeal rather than an 
application.

The National Planning Casework Unit has advised that in relation to the application still 
under consideration for the houses, because the previous Directions had lapsed it was not 
their intention to issue any further Direction unless they received a specific request to do so.

Officers were seeking the views of the Board as to whether they wished for a formal request 
to be made by officers on behalf of GBC.

Members unanimously agreed to support officers in making a formal request to the National 
Planning  Casework Unit that a Direction be issued in respect of the current planning 
application. 

The Chairman placed on record her thanks to all of the officers for their support at the 
meeting.   



Regulatory Board
22 July 2020

24

 

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 8.22 pm



Report Format Part A                                            AGENDA ITEM NO.          

Board/Committee: Regulatory Board
Date of Meeting: 2 September 2020
Title: Licensing Policy Review
Author: Ian Rickman
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

The Council is required to determine and publish every 5 years a statement of 
licencing policy in relation to the exercise of its functions under the Licensing 
Act 2003.  The purpose of this report is to bring before the Licensing Board 
the draft reviewed Licensing Policy Consultation Document and to approve it 
for statutory consultation.

Recommendation

 That members' views and comments be taken into account in 
considering the current Licensing Policy Consultation Document, 
attached as Appendix A to the report. 

 That the consultation exercise on the Licensing Policy commence at 
this meeting and continue until 25 November 2020;

 That a further report on the Licensing Policy, which details outcomes 
from the consultation process, be presented to the Regulatory Board 
on 2 December 2020 for recommendation to Full Council.

 That the Policy then be presented to Full council at its meeting on 9 
December 2020 for adoption.

1 Background

1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 took effect on 25 November 2005 and 
provided a unified system of regulation for the sale of alcohol, the 
provision of regulated entertainment and late-night refreshment. Most 
significantly it transferred to the local authority, as part of those 
provisions, liquor licensing, which was previously carried out by the 
Magistrates'' Court.  The Council is the licensing authority in its area 
for the discharge of licensing functions under the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2 Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires each licensing authority 
to publish a statement of policy in respect of its licensing functions at 
the beginning of each five-year period.  This policy must be kept under 
review and such revisions must be made at such times as it considers 
appropriate.

Agenda Item 6



1.3 The present five-year period ends in January 2021
 and therefore, a Licensing Policy for 2021-2026 must be determined 
and published.  Before doing so, consultation must have taken place 
with prescribed persons and groups being consulted.  Before 
determining its policy for a five-year period, a licensing authority must 
consult:

(a) the chief officer of police for the licensing area;
(b) the fire authority for that area;
(c) such persons as the authority considers to be 

representative of holders of premises licences issued by 
that authority;

(d) such persons as the authority considers to be 
representative of holders of club premises certificates 
issued by that authority;

(e) such persons as the authority considers to be 
representative of holders of personal licences issued by 
that authority; and

(f) Representatives of businesses and residents in its area.

2 Report

2.1 The licensing Act requires that the Council carries out its various 
licensing functions to promote the following four licensing objectives: -

 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 Public safety;
 The prevision of public nuisance; and 
 The protection of children from harm. 

2.2 In carry out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have 
regard to: 

 Its statement of Licensing Policy published under Sect 5 of the 
Act; and 

 Any guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 
182 of the Act. 

2.3 The Licensing Act requires the Council to publish a ‘Statement of 
Licensing Policy’ that sets out the policies the Council will generally 
apply to promote these licensing objectives when making decisions on 
applications made under the Act.

2.4 Where any revisions are made to the policy, it is also incumbent upon 
the licensing authority to publish a statement of the revisions or the 
revised licensing statement. 

2.5 The Head of Environmental Health has reviewed the current Licensing 
Policy. A Draft Licensing Policy has been prepared for the Board to 
consider and approve for the purpose of statutory consultation. There 
are no substantive changes other than those to simplify it and making 
the document more concise. The Draft Licensing Policy is attached as 
Appendix A to this report.  

2.6 Section 5 Licensing Act 2003 stipulates that once statutory 
consultation has been undertaken the approval of the Draft Licensing 
Policy for publication is not a function that can be discharged by the 
Regulatory Board. This decision must be made by Full Council.



3 Risk Assessment

3.1 There are no significant risk considerations in relation to this report; 
however, the Council is required to have a current Licensing Policy in 
place in order to assist it to meet its statutory obligations under the 
Act. The Licensing Policy itself is a key document as it details how the 
authority intends to operate and reflect the licensing objectives. If it 
makes any decisions which are not in line with the policy, full reasons 
must be given for that departure.

4 Conclusion

4.1 The Licensing Act 2003 made provision for the transfer to local 
authorities (the licensing authority) of the regulation of the sale and 
supply of alcohol, the provision of entertainment and provision of late-
night refreshment. 

4.2 The general duties of a licensing authority are that it must carry out its 
functions under the Act with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives and, in carrying out its licensing functions, it must also have 
regard to its Licensing Statement published under Section 5 of the Act 
and any guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 182 
of the Act. 

4.3 Before determining its Policy, however, a licensing authority must 
consult widely, in particular with those representatives listed and, 
under Section 5 (3) of the Act, with any other person or group which it 
feels it is necessary to consult. 

4.4 The Board is invited to approve the Draft Licensing Policy attached as 
Appendix A for the prescribed consultation. 

4.5 Following consultation, a further report on the Licensing Policy, which 
details outcomes from the consultation process, will be presented to 
the Board on 2 December 2020..



PLEASE MARK DRAFT 1 ETC UNTIL FINALISED
Risk Assessment: Within report

Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix ‘A’ Draft Licensing policy

Report author/Lead Officer: Ian Rickman

Financial Services comments:
Legal Services comments:
Crime and Disorder: Considered
Equality and Diversity:
Service Improvement Plan
Implications:

none

Corporate Plan:
Climate Change Implications: None
EIA: considered



Licensing Act 2003
Statement of Licensing Policy

March 2021 – March 2026



2

1. Introduction

1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 requires licensing authorities to publish a 
"statement of licensing policy" every five years, which sets out how 
they intend to exercise their functions. The policy sets out a 
general approach to making licensing decisions. Each application 
will be considered on its own individual merits. The discretion of the 
licensing authority in relation to applications is only used if relevant 
representations are made 

1.2 The Policy relates to all those licensing activities identified as 
falling within the provisions of the Act (Part 1 Section 1) namely:

 Retail sale of alcohol; 
 Supply of alcohol to club members; 
 The supply of hot food and/or drink from any premises between 

11 p.m. and 5 a.m.; 
 Provision of "Regulated Entertainment" – to the public, to club 

members or with a view to profit. “Regulated Entertainment” is 
defined as:  

 A performance of a play
 An exhibition of a film; 
 An indoor sporting event; 
 Boxing or wrestling entertainment; 
 A performance of live music; 
 Any playing of recorded music; 
 A performance of dance; 

1.3 The Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order 2014 and 
the Deregulation Act 2015 provide significant exemptions to some 
of the activities. These include licensed premises music 
exemptions.

1.4 The licensing authority has a duty under the Act to carry out its 
functions with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives, 
which are: 

 Prevention of crime and disorder 
 Public safety 
 Prevention of public nuisance 
 Protection of children from harm 



3

1.5 The Authority must also have regard to this Statement of Licensing 
Policy and any statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State. 
That does not mean that it has to follow the policy and guidance 
slavishly. It can depart from it if, having properly taken it into 
account, it has to have good reason to do so and where it is 
appropriate to do so to promote one or more of the licensing 
objectives. 

1.6 In promoting the licensing objectives the licensing authority has a 
number of key aims and purposes which should be principal aims 
for everyone involved in licensing work and are therefore integral to 
the Policy. They include: 

1. Protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social 
behaviour and noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed 
premises; 

2. Giving the police, licensing officers and responsible authorities 
the powers they need to effectively manage and police the 
night-time economy and take action against those premises 
that are causing problems; 

3. Recognising the important role which licensed premises play in 
our local communities and economy by minimizing the 
regulatory burden on business, encouraging innovation and 
supporting responsible premises; 

4. Providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the 
needs of local communities and empowers local authorities to 
make and enforce decisions about the most appropriate 
licensing strategies for their local area; and 

5. Encouraging greater community involvement in licensing 
decisions and giving local residents the opportunity to have 
their say regarding licensing decisions that may impact upon 
them. 

Consultation

1.7 In accordance with section 5 of the Act and prior to the publication 
of this Policy the licensing authority consulted with:

 Chief Officer of Police for the area (Hampshire Police) 
 Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority 
 Persons/bodies representative of local holders of premises 

licences; 
 Persons/bodies representative of local holders of club premises 

certificates; 
 Persons/bodies representative of local holders of personal 

licences; 

1.8 This Policy will come into effect on 9 February 2016 and remain in 
force for a period of five years. During this time the policy will be 
subject to regular review. 



4

2. Profile

2.1 Gosport Borough is located in South Hampshire on the western 
side of Portsmouth Harbour opposite the city of Portsmouth. The 
Borough is a peninsula of 2,750 hectares surrounded on three 
sides by The Solent and Portsmouth Harbour with almost 39 
kilometres of coastline. It is predominately urban in character and 
contains two principal settlements, Gosport and Lee-on-the-Solent, 
separated by the Alver Valley.

2.2 The population of the Borough in 2011 was 82,600 persons. 
 The Borough is also one of the most densely populated areas in 

the South East Region, with an urban density of 32.6 people per 
hectare. There are approximately 35,400 households.

3. The Impact of Alcohol on Gosport 

3.1 Figures from Public Health England state that “compares well to 
national and regional rates on many key indicators of alcohol-
related health harms, admissions are on an upward trend. There 
were 1,734 admissions to hospital where alcohol was a direct 
cause or a contributing factor in 2018/19, a 44% increase from 
2008/09.  An area of concern is the increasing trend of hospital 
admissions where alcohol can be wholly attributed as a cause. 
There were 599 admissions in 2018/19, 35% increase since 
2016/17 Gosport has a significantly higher rate of admissions (718 
per 100,000 people) than England” 

3.2 Public Health England state “Gosport has the highest rate of 
premises licensed to sell alcohol per square kilometre in 
Hampshire (7.3 premises per km²), significantly more than 
England1. Figure 3 below show comparison to other districts in 
Hampshire.”

Licensing Process 

4.1 Applicants are strongly encouraged to seek advice at the earliest 
possible stage from the licensing authority and other responsible 
authorities before making an application. 

4.2 Applicants will need to comply with the statutory requirements or 
risk their application being invalid. 

4.3 The licensing authority will expect individual applicants to address 
the licensing objectives in their operating schedule, having regard 
to the type of premises (which includes a vessel i.e. ship or boat), 



5

the licensable activities to be provided, the operational procedures, 
the nature of the location and needs of the local community. 

4.4 It is recommended that applicants obtain planning permission and 
building regulation approval along with all other necessary 
permissions and licences for the premises prior to an application 
being submitted. 

4.5 When formulating their operating schedule applicants will be 
expected to make themselves aware of any relevant planning and 
transportation policies, tourism and cultural strategies or local crime 
prevention strategies and to have taken these into account where 
appropriate.

4.6 When determining applications, the licensing authority will have 
regard to any guidance issued by the Government. Account will be 
taken of the need to encourage and promote live music, dancing 
and theatre for the wider cultural benefit of the community as a 
whole. If representations are made concerning the potential for 
limited disturbance in a neighbourhood, the licensing authority's 
consideration of those representations will be balanced against the 
wider benefits to the community.

4.7 When determining applications, the only conditions which should 
be imposed on a premises licence or club premises licence are 
those that are appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. Regard will be had to any local crime 
prevention strategies.

Operating Schedules

4.8 The operating schedule must form part of the completed 
application form for a premises licence. It should include 
information, which is necessary to enable a responsible authority or 
other person to assess whether and what steps have been taken or 
are proposed in order to promote the licensing objectives. 

4.9 As and when appropriate the applicant should provide in the 
operating schedule such further relevant additional 
information/evidence where there is an apparent departure from 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

4.10 It is strongly recommended that applicants and/or their legal 
advisors discuss with Council officers and representatives of 
responsible authorities the draft operating schedule before it is 
formally submitted. This will help ensure it properly addresses all 
relevant issues that might give rise for concern. This may avoid the 



6

necessity for a hearing if the application otherwise passes without 
representation. 

Representations 

4.11  There is a prescribed period during which the licensing authority 
can receive a written representation to an application. This is 
usually 28 days from the date the licensing authority receives the 
application but varies depending on the type of application under 
consideration. 

4.12 “Relevant representations” can include positive, supportive 
representations as well as objections. 

Decision Making Process 

4.13 It will be the licensing authority’s policy to provide an efficient and 
cost-effective service to all parties involved in the licensing 
process. Except for the approval and review of this Policy, 
decisions on licensing matters will be taken in accordance with an 
approved scheme of delegation. 

4.14 In accordance with DCMS Guidance the licensing authority has 
delegated licensing functions to sub-committees or in appropriate 
cases, to officials supporting the licensing authority as follows: 

Matter to be dealt with Board Officers 

Application for personal licence If a police objection If no objection 
made

Application for person licence 
with unspent convictions All cases

Application for premises 
licence/club premises certificate 

If a relevant 
representation made

If no relevant 
representation 
made

Application for provisional 
statement 

If a relevant 
representation made

If no relevant 
representation 
made

Application to vary premises 
licence/club premises certificate 

If a relevant 
representation made

If no relevant 
representation 
made

Application to vary designated 
premises supervisor If a police objection All other cases

Request to be removed as 
designated premises supervisor All cases

Application for transfer of 
premises licence If a police objection All other cases

Applications for interim 
authorities If a police objection All other cases



7

Matter to be dealt with Board Officers 
Application to review premises 
licence/club premises certificate All cases

Decision on whether a complaint 
is irrelevant frivolous vexatious 
etc. 

All cases in 
consultation with 
the Chairman

Decision to object when local 
authority is a consultee and not 
the relevant authority 
considering the application 

All cases



8

Matter to be dealt with Board Officers 
Determination of a police 
objection to a temporary event 
notice 

All cases

Determination of application to 
vary premises licence at a 
community premises to include 
alternative licence condition 

If a police objection All other cases

Decision whether to consult 
other responsible authorities on 
minor variation application 

All cases

Determination of minor variation 
application All cases

4.15 If no relevant representations are received then the authorisation 
will be issued automatically with, in the case of a premises licence 
or club premises certificate, such conditions attached as are 
mandatory or are consistent with the operating schedule 
accompanying the application. The licensing authority will have no 
conditions attached to the licence. 

4.16 Where relevant representations are made and not withdrawn, the 
licensing authority must hold a hearing before the Licensing Board 
who will take such of the following steps as it considers appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

4.17 The steps are: 

 grant the licence subject to the operating schedule modified to 
such extent as the Board considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, and subject to the relevant 
mandatory conditions; 

 exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable 
activities to which the application relates; 

 to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises 
supervisor; 

 reject the application. 

Applications for Large Events 

4.18 Events that the Council believe may require a co-ordinated 
approach to manage may be subject to a Safety Advisory Group 
(SAG) process. This will be at the discretion of the Council.  
Applicants will need to demonstrate to the members of the SAG 
they are supporting the licensing objectives. 



9

4.19 An Event Management Plan needs to be submitted at least 6 
months prior to the event to allow for the SAG process to be 
undertaken before any required licensing process.

Shops Selling Alcohol (Off Licences) 

4.20 In 2013 the British Beer and Pub Association estimated that twice 
as much alcohol is bought in off-licensed premises as from pubs or 
other licensed premises. This was after years of seeing a steady 
increase in the amount of alcohol sold in off licences. Pre-loading 
with alcohol before a night out is much more frequent. This change 
in habit has the potential to negatively impact on the licensing 
objectives with on-licensed premises most at risk of the 
consequences.  There are additional increased potential risks such 
as easier access to alcohol by children (given that consumption is 
not monitored / regulated), theft, increased street drinking and an 
increase in crime and disorder. 

4.21 To address theft and access by children to alcohol the layout of 
premises, CCTV, where alcohol will be displayed and what steps 
will be undertaken to support the licensing objectives will be 
considered. 

Temporary Event Notices (TENS) 

4.22 The Licensing Act 2003 enables certain organised events for fewer 
than 500 people to take place following notification to the licensing 
authority, the Police and Environmental Health. 

4.23 Guidance on giving Notice can be found in the Home Office Fact 
Sheet. www.gov.uk/government/publications/temporary-events-
notices-factsheet. 

4.24 Although the statutory legal minimum time required for the 
notification of a temporary event to the licensing authority, Police 
and Environmental Health is ten working days, or five working days 
for a late temporary event, it is essential that proper consideration 
of the proposed event is given. Statutory guidance allows the 
licensing authority to publicise its preferred timescale for 
notification. 

4.25 Late temporary event notices must be received with five clear 
working days’ notice.  For the avoidance of doubt, applications 
submitted electronically, via .GOV.UK must be received by 23:59 
on the Sunday for events occurring the following weekend.  i.e. If 
an event is taking place on Saturday 7 March, the application must 
be received by 23:59 on Sunday 1 March. 

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/temporary-events-notices-factsheet
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/temporary-events-notices-factsheet


10

4.26 The licensing authority will encourage bona fide community events. 
Giving TENs for existing licensed premises will not be encouraged 
where the proposal is simply to regularly extend the existing hours 
of operation. 4.27 .  The licensing authority expects those who 
have given notice of a temporary event to have identified any 
particular issues having regard to their type of premises and/or 
activities, and to have in place written policies for addressing 
issues such as drunkenness, crime/disorder and drugs on their 
premises and for ensuring staff are trained on these policies.

 
5. Management of Premises 

Designated Premises Supervisor 

5.1 Any premises where alcohol is sold under a premises licence must 
have a designated premises supervisor (DPS). The DPS will be 
named in the premises licence, a summary of which must be 
displayed on the premises. A DPS must be a personal licence 
holder. Every sale of alcohol must be made or authorised by a 
person who holds a personal licence (or must be made or 
authorised by the management committee in the case of 
community premises). 

5.2 The Licensing Act 2003 does not require a DPS or any other 
personal licence holder to be present on the premises at all times 
when alcohol is sold. However, the DPS and the premises licence 
holder always remain responsible for the premises . 

5.3 The licensing authority will normally expect the DPS to have been 
given the day-to-day responsibility for running the premises and as 
such it is expected that the DPS would usually be present at the 
licensed premises on a regular basis. The Authority expects that 
this will be in excess of 50% of a seven-day week. 

5.4 The premises licence holder will be expected to ensure that the 
DPS has experience commensurate with the size, capacity, nature 
and style of the premises and licensable activities to be provided. 

5.5 Within all licensed premises, whether or not alcohol is to be sold, 
the licensing authority will expect there to be proper management 
arrangements in place which will ensure that there is an 
appropriate number of responsible, trained/instructed persons at 
the premises to ensure the proper management of the premises 
and of the activities taking place, as well as adherence to all 
statutory duties and the terms and conditions of the premises 
licence. 

Door Supervisors 



11

5.6 The premises licence holder and DPS should ensure that their 
premises do not increase the fear of crime as well as actual crime 
in their locality. To this end they should ensure, so far as is 
possible, that customers do not cause nuisance or disorder outside 
the premises and that measures to ensure the safety of customers 
and prevention of nuisance are in place. Door supervisors have an 
important role in managing customers, not only on the doors but 
also in the immediate area of premises. 

Dispersal Policies 

5.7 The licensing authority accepts that licensed premises can have a 
diffuse impact. People can cause disturbance when returning to 
residential areas from later-opening premises elsewhere and 
people who use off-licences may locate to a remote spot to drink. 
These problems may not be within the direct control of any 
particular licensed premises. However, premises licence holders 
are generally expected to take measures to encourage people to 
leave their premises quietly and considerately. The Licensing 
Authority would encourage premises to adopt a dispersal policy 
where appropriate. 

Risk Assessment 

5.8 The licensing authority will expect that appropriate and satisfactory 
general and technical risk assessments, management procedures 
and documentation have been made available to the relevant 
responsible authorities and to the licensing authority, that 
demonstrate that the public will be safe within and in the vicinity of 
the premises. 

5.9 As a minimum the following matters must be taken into 
consideration: 

 Whether the premises already have a licence which specifies the 
maximum number of people that can be present and, whether a 
risk assessment has been undertaken as to the maximum 
number of people who can be present in various parts of the 
premises, so that they can be operated safely and can be 
evacuated safely in the event of an emergency. 

 Whether there are procedures in place to record and limit the 
number of people on the premises with opportunities for “pass 
outs” and readmission. 

 Whether patrons can arrive at and depart from the premises 
safely. 

 Whether there may be overcrowding in particular parts of the 
premises; 

 Whether music and dance venues and performance venues will 
use equipment or special effects that may affect public safety 



12

(e.g. moving equipment, vehicles, pyrotechnics, strobe lights, 
smoke machines). 

 Whether there are defined responsibilities and procedures for 
medical and other emergencies and for calling the emergency 
services. 

Promoters 

5.10 The premises licence holder, DPS and personal licence holders 
remain responsible for activities taking place on premises when 
promotions take place. In addition, the licensing authority will 
expect premises licence holders to have in place written 
agreements to ensure that when hiring out venues to promoters, 
the responsibility for the management of the premises is clear. The 
Promoter and its employees or agents shall comply in all respects 
with all conditions, requirements and regulations of the local 
authority, licensing authority, police authority and fire authority and 
have regard to good practice for licensed premises. 

Takeaway Premises (Late Night Refreshment Houses) 

5.11 The Licensing Authority considers that it will normally be 
inappropriate to grant a premises licence permitting the sale of 
alcohol at premises which are principally used for selling hot food 
for consumption off the premises (“takeaway” premises). 

5.12 It is recognised that takeaway premises open late at night can be 
associated with disorder as persons under the influence of alcohol 
having left, or in some cases being ejected from, late night venues 
congregate there. Applicants are recommended to have clear 
written policies for dealing with disorder and nuisance. 

5.13 Operators of takeaway premises (including mobile units) must have 
suitable arrangements in place for the containment and disposal of 
their waste in accordance with the Environmental Protection Act 
1990 and subsidiary regulations. Operators of premises where food 
or drink is provided in disposable containers for consumption 
elsewhere than on the premises are expected to consider the 
potential for litter near their premises and take steps to actively 
reduce the amount of litter generated from their premises. 
Applicants are also asked to consider the type of packaging 
container, whether it is always necessary and whether it can be 
sourced from sustainable materials. 

5.14 Where the Licensing Authority considers it appropriate, it may 
impose conditions on a premises licence to require the operator of 
premises serving customers with hot food or drink to provide litter 
bins in the vicinity of the premises in order to prevent the 
accumulation of litter from its customers. It may require the 



13

proprietor to service those litter bins as part of their own waste 
management arrangements. 

External Areas 

5.15 The introduction of the requirement for smoke free public places 
under the Health Act 2006 has led to an increase in the number of 
people outside licensed premises. The provision of tables and 
chairs outside premises can enhance the attractiveness of a venue, 
but regard should be had to the need to ensure that the use of such 
areas will not cause nuisance to the occupiers of other premises in 
the vicinity. In particular, those with authorisations are expected to 
manage persons smoking in the vicinity of premises so they do not 
impede access to the premises and do not cause disturbance. In 
addition they are expected to provide secure ash trays or wall 
mounted cigarette bins for patrons so as to minimise litter. 

5.16 Licensees should also be aware of the possibility of breakages of 
drinking glasses and glass bottles in outside areas. Consideration 
should therefore be given to the use of toughened or “plastic” 
drinking vessels and other management controls to avoid or lessen 
the likelihood of broken glass in these areas. 

5.17 The licensing authority has a number of concerns with respect to 
the development of external areas to licensed premises, and will 
consider imposing conditions to improve the management of the 
outside area or prohibiting or restricting the use of these areas in 
order to promote the public nuisance objective. 

Vehicles

5.18 Under the Act, alcohol may not be sold on or from a moving vehicle 
and therefore any application for such will be refused.  However, 
applications for Premises Licences will be considered for the sale 
of alcohol from parked or stationary vehicles relating solely to the 
place where the vehicle is parked and the sale of alcohol will take 
place.



14

6. Cumulative Impact/Special Saturation Policy 

6.1 The licensing authority will not take the “need” for an establishment 
into account when considering an application, as this is a matter for 
the market. The licensing authority however recognises that the 
cumulative impact of the number, type and density of licensed 
premises in a given area, may lead to serious problems of 
nuisance and disorder in the vicinity of the premises. 

6.2 If representations are received from a responsible authority or other 
persons suggesting that an area has become saturated with 
licensed premises, such degree of concentration making it a focal 
point for large groups of people to gather in surrounding areas, 
possibly away from the premises themselves, the licensing 
authority will consider on an evidential basis if this impact has an 
adverse effect on the promotion of the licensing objectives in 
addition to that created by the individual premises. 

6.3 In these circumstances, the licensing authority will assess whether 
the imposition of conditions can address these problems or if the 
adoption of a special policy of refusing applications for new 
Premises Licences or Club Premises Certificates is needed 
because the area is saturated with licensed premises and that 
granting of any more would undermine at least one of the licensing 
objectives. 

6.4 When considering whether to adopt a special saturation policy the 
Licensing Authority will consider a range of issues including the 
following: 

   Evidence of identification of concern about crime and disorder 
or public nuisance; 

   Where it can be demonstrated that nuisance and/or disorder is 
arising as a result of customers from licensed premises, 
identifying the area from which problems are arising and the 
boundaries of that area; 

   Following consultation and subject to that consultation, 
inclusion of a special policy about future Premises Licence or 
Club Premises Certificate applications from that area; and 

   Publication of the special policy. 

6.5 If a special policy is adopted it creates a rebuttable presumption 
that licence and certificate applications or material variations will 
normally be refused if relevant representations are received. 
Accordingly applicants will need to address the special policy 
issues in their operating schedules in seeking to rebut the 
presumption. Applicants would need to demonstrate that the 
operation of the premises involved would not add to the cumulative 
impact already being experienced. 



15

6.6 If implemented, the licensing authority would regularly review any 
special saturation policies to see whether they have had the 
intended effect and are still required. 

6.7 The licensing authority will not normally use special saturation 
policies solely; 

 As grounds for removing a licence when representations are 
received about problems with existing licensed premises, or; 

  To refuse modifications to a licence, except where the 
modifications are directly relevant to the policy, for example 
where the application is for a significant increase in the 
capacity limits. 

6.8 The licensing authority also recognises that, within this policy, it 
may be able to approve licences that are unlikely to add 
significantly to the saturation, and will consider the circumstances 
of each individual application having regard to the licensing 
objectives. 

6.9 The licensing authority, having regard to the evidence currently 
available, considers that at present there is no particular part of the 
district where a cumulative impact exists, leading to an adverse 
impact upon the fulfilment of the licensing objectives. However, the 
cumulative impact of licensed premises will be kept under review. 

6.10 Other mechanisms, both within and outside the licensing regime 
that are available for controlling cumulative effect are: 

 Planning controls; 
 Positive measures to create a safe and clean environment in 

partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other 
Local Authority services; 

 Application of the powers of the Council to designate parts of the 
area as places where alcohol may not be consumed publicly; 

 Police enforcement of the normal law concerning disorder and 
anti-social behaviour, including the issue of fixed penalty notices; 

 The prosecution of any holder of a Personal Licence or member 
of staff at such premises who is selling alcohol to people who 
are drunk; 

 The confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in 
designated areas; 

 Application of Police powers to close for up to 24 hours, any 
licensed premises or temporary event on the grounds of 
disorder, the likelihood of disorder, or excessive noise 
emanating from the premises; and 

 Application of Police powers, other Responsible Authorities, 
local residents or businesses to seek a formal review of a 
licence/certificate. 



16

7. Children

7.1  A child is anyone under the age of 18 years unless otherwise 
stated. 

7.2 This statement of licensing policy does not seek to limit the access 
of children to any premises unless it is necessary for the prevention 
of physical, moral or psychological harm. 

7.3 When considering applications for premises licences, the licensing 
authority will take into account the history of a particular premises 
and the nature of the activities proposed to be provided when 
considering any options appropriate to prevent harm to children. 
The relevant matters include premises: 

 where there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors 
or with a reputation for underage drinking; 

 with a known association with drug taking or dealing; 
 where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises; 
 where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly 

provided; 
 where the supply of alcohol is the exclusive or primary purpose 

of the service at the premises. 
 in these circumstances, conditions may be attached to any 

licence to: 
 limit the hours when children may be present; 
 restrict the age of persons on premises; 
 exclude children from all or part of the premises when certain 

activities may take place; 
 require an adult to accompany a child; 
 set out a requirement for the presence of adult staff according to 

a set adult/child ratio where children are attending regulated 
entertainment; 

 exclude people under 18 from the premises when any licensable 
activities are taking place. 

7.4 Where no licensing restriction is considered necessary, however, it 
is at the discretion of the premises licence holder or club to decide 
whether or not to admit children; however the licensing authority 
strongly supports the use of Challenge 25 policies, the recording of 
all refusals and training on all age restricted activity. 

7.5  Where premises give film exhibitions, licensees must ensure that 
children are prevented from viewing age-restricted films classified 
according to the British Board of Film Classification. 



17

7.6 Except as in 7.2 above the authority will not impose conditions 
restricting the admission of children to any premises believing this 
should remain a matter of discretion of the licence holder. The 
licensing authority encourages family friendly policies. It will take 
strong measures to protect children where any licence holder is 
convicted of serving alcohol to children, where premises have or 
acquire a known association with drug taking or dealing, where 
gambling takes place on the premises or where entertainment of an 
adult or sexual nature is commonly provided. In such 
circumstances while it may sometimes be necessary to impose a 
complete ban on the admission of children this would be rarely 
imposed, it would be more likely to require conditions as referred to 
above. 

7.7 Where a large number of children are likely to be present on any 
licensed premises, for example, a children's show or pantomime, 
then conditions will be imposed requiring the presence of an 
appropriate number of adult staff to ensure public safety and their 
protection from harm including control of access and egress and 
consideration may be given to include conditions concerning 
child/adult ratios 

7.8 The licensing authority recognises the great variety of premises for 
which licences may be sought. These will include theatres, 
cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes, takeaways, 
community halls and schools. Access by children to all types of 
premises will not be limited in any way unless it is considered 
appropriate to do so in order to protect them from harm 

7.9 In the case of premises which are used for film exhibitions 
conditions will be imposed restricting access only to those who 
meet the required age limit in line with any certificate granted by 
the British Board of Film Classification or, in a specific case where 
there are very good local reasons a certificate given to the film by 
the licensing authority itself. 

7.10 Where no restriction or limitation is imposed the issue of access will 
remain a matter for the discretion of the individual licensee or club. 

7.11    The wide range of premises that require licensing means that 
children can be expected to visit many of these, often on their own, 
for food and/or entertainment. 

7.12 The Act details a number of offences designed to protect children 
in licensed premises and the licensing authority will work closely 
with the police and other appropriate agencies to ensure the 
appropriate enforcement of the law, especially relating to the sale 
and supply of alcohol to children. 



18

8. Enforcement 

8.1 It is essential that premises are maintained and operated so as to 
ensure the continued promotion of the licensing objectives and 
compliance with the approved operating schedule, the specific 
requirements of the 2003 Act and any licence conditions imposed. 
The licensing authority, in partnership with the responsible 
authorities, will make arrangements to monitor premises. 

8.2 The licensing authority will work closely with the police, trading 
Standards and the other responsible authorities, liaising on a 
regular basis to establish enforcement protocols and concordats to 
ensure an efficient deployment of resources engaged in enforcing 
licensing law and inspecting licensed premises, in order to ensure 
that resources are targeted at problem and high-risk premises. 

8.3 The Act details a number of offences designed to protect children 
in licensed premises and the licensing authority will work closely 
with the police, Trading Standards and other appropriate agencies 
to ensure the appropriate enforcement of the law, especially 
relating to the sale and supply of alcohol and tobacco products to 
children. 

8.4 The premises licence holder is responsible to ensure the four 
licensing objectives are upheld: 

 Prevention of crime and disorder 
 Public Safety 
 Prevention of public nuisance 
 Protection of children from harm 

8.5 Where there is evidence to suggest the licensing objectives are 
being undermined, enforcement action will be taken in accordance 
with the principles of better regulation and the Regulator’s 
Compliance Code. The aim is to have well run premises operating 
in our borough. Problems at premises will be identified by the 
relevant authorities and the licence holder will have responsibility to 
resolve the problem. Failure to address or respond to problems or 
isolated serious failures will normally result in a review application. 



Regulatory Board Agenda:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 1 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
 
GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL – REGULATORY BOARD  
 
2nd September 2020 
 
ITEMS WITH RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
1. Copies of drawings and other supporting documents accompanying the planning applications 

referred to in this schedule are available to view online using Public Access 
(https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/) by searching using the relevant 
application number. 

 
2. The number of objections and representations indicated in the schedule are correct at the 

time the recommendations were formulated.  Should any representations be made after this 
date, these will be notified to the Regulatory Board during the officer presentation. 

 
3. Copies of all representations received from the public are available for inspection by Members 

in the same way as drawings and other supporting documents are available, referred to in 
Note 1 above. 

 
4. An index of planning applications within this schedule can be found overleaf, together with a 

summary of each recommendation. 
 

Agenda Item 7

https://publicaccess.gosport.gov.uk/online-applications/


Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 2 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
INDEX 

Item Page 
No 

Appl. No. Address Recommendation 

 
 

01. 3-10 19/00049/FULL Land Adjacent To 36 
Palmerston Way  Gosport  
Hampshire  PO12 2LZ     

Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
02. 11-25 19/00133/FULL Site Of Former Crewsaver 

Building  Land To The North 
Of Harbour Road  Mumby 
Road  Gosport  Hampshire  
PO12 1AQ 

Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions / 
s106 

 
03. 26-34 19/00157/FULL 9 - 11 High Street  Gosport  

Hampshire  PO12 1BX     
Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
04. 35-43 20/00051/FULL 17A High Street  Gosport  

Hampshire  PO12 1BX     
Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
05. 44-50 20/00138/FULL 16 Marine Parade East  Lee-

On-The-Solent  Hampshire  
PO13 9LA     

Refuse 
 

 
06. 51-54 20/00194/FULL 56 Military Road  Gosport  

Hampshire  PO12 3BX     
Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 3 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 01.   

APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/00049/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr James Connolly   
DATE REGISTERED: 20.03.2019 

 
ERECTION OF 1NO. THREE BEDROOM DWELLING WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING 
(as amended by plans received 27.07.20) 
Land Adjacent To 36 Palmerston Way  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2LZ     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The site is located on the north side of Palmerston Way and comprises a piece of land that 
previously formed part of the garden of number 35 Kennedy Crescent.  There was planting to the 
boundaries, and a willow tree towards the rear of the application site and a low brick wall and 
planting to Palmerston Way, however, the site has now been cleared and a close board fence 
erected on the rear boundary of the plot. 
 
2. The surrounding area is residential and comprises a variety of property sizes, designs and 
proximity to boundaries. Number 36 to the east has a mix of hipped and gable roofs with a cat slide 
roof, with dormer adjacent to its eastern boundary.  The property has a conservatory on its rear 
elevation, situated approximately 4 metres away from the application site boundary. Number 44 to 
the west is a two-storey house with a gable roof and a flat roof garage on its western side.  The 
property has windows facing the application site which are secondary windows to a lounge and 
bedroom.  Opposite the site, the properties include extensions that project close to, and up to the 
pavement and include a variety of roof styles including a barn hip and cat slide roofs.  Properties 
are constructed from a mix of materials, including brick and render, with pitched and flat roofs. 
 
3. The proposals are for the erection of a detached two-storey dwelling on the site.  The original 
plans proposed a dwelling that was 17m deep and set back from the highway by between 6m and 
7.5m.  Its overall height was proposed at 9.6m, with an eaves height of 5.9m.  The front garden was 
given over to hard surfacing to accommodate 4 cars. 
 
4. Revised plans have been provided which make a number of reductions in size to the proposed 
house.  The depth of the two-storey building has been reduced by 2m to 15m at the centre of the 
site, and to 12m adjacent to the boundaries. The proposed eaves height has been reduced by 0.7m 
to 5.2m and the overall height would be 8.5m.  The building would be sited in excess of 1m from the 
west and 1.8m from the east boundaries.  It is now proposed to be set back from Palmerston Way 
by between 6.5m and 4.8m.  Three car parking spaces are proposed to be accessed from a single 
access point towards the eastern boundary, retaining a small area of garden to the west, with a new 
0.9m high boundary wall to be constructed to the west of the vehicular access.  
 
5. The dwelling would be constructed from brick and have gable projections on the front elevation 
with a centrally located front door and a pitched roof over. The main two-storey element would have 
a hipped roof on the rear, with the deeper central projection having a gable roof over.  Single storey 
projections are proposed on both sides of the central two storey projection. The single storey 
projection on the west side would be 2m deeper than the two storey element and 4m wide, whilst 
that on the east would extend to the same depth as the two storey projection and be 3.4m wide, 
stepped further away from the boundary compared to the main building.  A further set of amended 
plans have been provided to address some consistency issues between the drawings, but not 
increasing any of the building's dimensions. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
20/00182/FULL - erection of 1no. 4 bedroom dwelling with associated car parking (alternative 
scheme to application 19/00049/full) - pending consideration 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 4 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 LP2  Infrastructure 
 LP3  Spatial Strategy 
 LP10  Design 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 LP24  Housing 
 LP39  Water Resources 
 LP41  Green Infrastructure 
 LP42  International and Nationally Important Habitats 
 LP44  Protecting Species and Other Features of Nature Conservation Importance 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 Solent Special Protection Areas Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol April 2018 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019 
 
Consultations 
  
 Streetscene Waste & Cleansing Two 240 litre waste/recycling bins will be 

provide for use.  The collection point will be 
kerb-side on Palmerston Way. 

  
 Building Control No response received. 
  
 Local Highway Authority No objection.  Request condition in respect 

of the provision of parking. 
  
 Natural England No objection subject to mitigation measures. 

 
Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy - Since 
this application will result in a net increase in 
residential accommodation, impacts to the 
coastal Special Protection Area(s) and 
Ramsar site(s) may result from increased 
recreational pressure. Gosport Borough 
Council has measures in place to manage 
these potential impacts through the agreed 
strategic solution (SRMP Definitive Strategy) 
which we consider to be ecologically sound.  
  
Subject to the appropriate financial 
contribution being secured, Natural England 
is satisfied that the proposal will mitigate 
against the potential recreational impacts of 
the development on the site(s). It is Natural 
England's view that the Solent Mitigation 
Recreation Strategy Contribution adequately 
mitigates the effects of the development on 
potential recreational impacts on the 
designated sites. 
 
Nutrient Neutrality - with regard to 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 5 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

deterioration of the water environment, 
Natural England is aware that your authority 
is working with Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Wildlife Trust (HIWWT) to provide a 
reduction in nitrogen elsewhere in the 
catchment.  
 
If the applicant has provided written 
confirmation that they will contribute towards 
offsetting to the value of 1kg of nitrates and 
the Council, as competent authority, is 
satisfied that the approach will ensure the 
proposal is nutrient neutral and the 
necessary measures can be fully secured; 
Natural England raises no further concerns. 

  
 Hampshire Fire And Rescue Service No objection. Development should comply 

with the guidance contained in Part B5, 
Approved Document B, Volume 1 
"Dwellinghouses". 

  
 Environmental Health No objection. 
 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
5 letters of objection to original plans 
Issues raised: 
- accept the principle of a house on the site 
- scale and mass of proposals are totally out of keeping with the surrounding properties which is 

clearly demonstrated by the block plan 
- the main structure is some 17 metres deep compared to 8 to 9 metres of the neighbours 
- at present the property contributes to the softening of the street, however, the proposals would 

make this very urban in appearance 
- the proposal would only be 1m form the boundaries  impacting on amenities, particularly loss of 

light 
- proposed house is substantially higher than neighbours and roof design will have a detrimental 

impact 
- proposals out of scale and character with neighbours 
- rear garden of 6.4m is inadequate, particularly if they seek to benefit from permitted development 

rights 
- loss of privacy, including the proposed window to bedroom 3 would overlook neighbours 
- inconsistencies between the number of parking spaces on plan and indicated in supporting 

documents 
- no garage is provided which is out of character 
- loss of light, including impact on side windows of number 44 
- 3rd floor fully glazed dormer would also create overshadowing and loss of light 
- impact during construction phase 
- impact on property values 
- length of time to comment (21 days) is not sufficient given residents are sometimes away for a 

number of months and the letters result in a loss of 2 days due to post 
- mature willow on site which will be lost 
 
1 letter of objection to amended plans 
Issues raised: 
- despite revisions the house is still out of proportion to the plot and would be out of keeping 
- 2 of the 3 spaces appear to be undersized 
- a functional garage, a covenant of many properties in Palmerston Way is a sensible requirement 

and would provide a bike store etc 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 6 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

- loss of light and privacy to the neighbours 
- internal layout suggests this is not a family house and acoustics may cause problems for the use 
- plans indicate a 3 bedroom property but is noted as a 4 bedroom property 
 
3 letters of observation to amended plans 
Issues raised: 
- confirm their previous objections have been addressed 
- no objection subject to Permitted Development rights being removed 
- happy for tree to be planted to replace Willow given its poor health has resulted in the need for its 

removal 
 
1 letter of support to amended plans 
Issues raised: 
- following a successful meeting with the applicant and having reviewed the plans, are now in 

support of the proposals 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. The application has been publicly advertised in accordance with the Council's Statement of 
Community Involvement. Issues associated with loss of property value are not relevant to the 
consideration of a planning application. A certain level of disturbance is inevitable during the 
construction period, however, if it became a statutory nuisance, the matter can be dealt with through 
the Environmental Health legislation. The application site is located within the Urban Area Boundary 
where the principle of a new dwelling is acceptable, subject to compliance with other Local Plan 
Policies. The main issues for consideration are, therefore, whether the proposal would have a 
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area, on the adjacent occupiers, or 
would impact on highway safety, or ecological interests. 
 
2. Given the layout of Palmerston Way, this site appears as a vacant plot within the streetscene and 
a new dwelling in this location would maintain the overriding character of the area.  There are a 
variety of ridge heights and building designs within Palmerston Way and the proposals would, 
overall, respect this very mixed appearance. The revised designs are also a significant 
improvement over the original submission, with a more comparable ridge and eaves height to the 
neighbours, and balanced appearance on the front elevation, with centrally located entrance and 
more appropriately proportioned fenestration. Details of the materials would be secured by planning 
condition. It is accepted that the footprint of the building is large, however, in streetscene terms it 
has a similar scale and massing to many other properties, and has been sited to provide separation 
to the side boundaries, a feature on the majority of properties in the locality.  There are also a 
number of other properties within the street that are of a similar depth and include two-storey 
projections on their rear elevation. Many of the properties in the vicinity have also been extended 
and the provision of the single storey projections would be an acceptable design feature. The 
proposals would, therefore, relate appropriately to the character and appearance of the area and 
are, therefore in compliance with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
3. The revised plans have addressed the majority of the concerns expressed in the representations, 
in relation to the impacts on the neighbouring properties, with the direct neighbours now confirming 
they do not object to the proposals, subject to the imposition of conditions to remove permitted 
development rights and to plant a replacement tree. The windows on the side of number 44 are 
secondary and whilst the development would be sited directly in front of these, the rooms they serve 
have a primary light source on the front, or rear elevations. The extent of the proposals does mean 
that there would be some impact on number 36, given the depth that the two-storey element would 
project beyond the rear elevation, however, the impacts in terms of loss of light, or outlook, are not 
considered to be significant and harmful to the amenities of the occupiers of this property given the 
orientation, proposed separation distances and the existence of south facing windows within the 
closest room (lounge). Similarly, the single storey projections proposed, would be set off of the 
boundary by sufficient distance, or are of an acceptable depth to ensure that the relationships to the 
neighbouring properties are acceptable and would not give rise to any harm to the amenities of 
neighbouring occupiers. 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 7 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
4. Distances between windows to the rear would be in excess of 21m to accord with the guidance 
within the Design SPD. This would ensure that there would not be a harmful impact on the 
occupiers of neighbouring properties in terms of loss of privacy. Given the extent of development 
proposed which already includes single and two-storey projections, it is considered appropriate to 
impose a condition preventing additional extensions to the building being constructed without the 
need for planning permission, to bring them under the Local Planning Authority's control. Given this 
is a detached property set away from the boundaries, it is not considered that the internal layout 
should give rise to additional noise and disturbance from normal use as a dwelling. Overall the 
proposals are, therefore, in compliance with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029. 
  
5. This proposal is for a 3 bedroom house, and the requirement of the Council's Parking: 
Supplementary Planning Document is for two off-street allocated car parking spaces. The applicant 
has proposed three off-street spaces which would exceed the requirements.  Whilst no garage is 
proposed, this is not an essential criterion for the development to be acceptable in either design, or 
parking terms. The amendments to the car parking layout for the site and the size of the spaces is 
acceptable and there is capacity within the highway to enable cars to be rotated where required.  
The proposals, therefore, make adequate provision for off-street car parking spaces.  There is 
sufficient space within the garden for secure cycle storage and refuse storage and access to the 
rear garden along the sides of the house.  These details would be secured by planning condition.  
The proposals would, therefore, accord with the Parking SPD and Policy LP23 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.  
 
6. The proposal will introduce additional dwellings which is likely to result in increased recreational 
activity on the coast and a consequential impact on the protected species for which the Portsmouth 
Harbour SPA, the Solent and Southampton Water SPA and the Chichester and Langstone 
Harbours SPA are designated. To address this impact, a contribution towards appropriate 
mitigation, in accordance with the Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol, is required and this 
has been paid. There is no evidence that the site supports notable or endangered species and none 
are a threat as a result of the development, however, a condition requiring appropriate biodiversity 
enhancement is considered appropriate.  
 
7. Natural England has also raised concerns that new dwellings are causing increased levels of 
nitrogen and phosphorus input to the water environment in the Solent with evidence that these 
nutrients are causing eutrophication at European and internationally designated habitat sites and 
additional mitigation measures will be required to offset any increases in nitrogen discharges that 
would result from the proposals. Natural England advise that proposals for new residential 
development should achieve nitrogen neutrality to avoid harm to these sites.  
 
8. The applicant has provided a proposed mitigation strategy which involves off-setting the increase 
in nitrogen at the site, by a corresponding reduction in nitrogen elsewhere in the subcatchment. In 
this instance the land indicated as available as mitigation is on the Isle of Wight and will be owned 
and managed by the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust (HIWWT) which will be removed 
from agricultural use and managed as such for the lifetime of the development.  The applicant will 
make a financial contribution to the HIWWT to purchase land credits to an equivalent level to offset 
the amount of nitrogen produced by the development (nitrogen budget).  The HIWWT has provided 
written confirmation that subject to finalising the contractual arrangements, the Wildlife Trust has 
reserved an area sufficient to mitigate 1 kg of nitrates generated, offsetting the proposed 
development. Natural England has reviewed the Habitats Regulations Assessment/Appropriate 
Assessment and is satisfied with these proposed mitigation measures. The full details of these 
measures would be secured by planning condition, along with securing measures limiting water 
usage within the property to 110ltr per person per day. This is an acceptable approach to mitigating 
the proposed development and as such it would not cause harm to European and internationally 
designated protected sites in accordance with Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 8 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning with 
the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
 
Site Location and Block Plans Rev 4, Palmerston Way - A1 Floor Plans Con. Rev 4; Palmerston 
Way - A1 Elev. Con. Rev 4. 
 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  a) Construction above slab level shall not commence until details of all external facing and 
roofing materials shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason - To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory, and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 4.  The dwelling hereby permitted shall not be occupied until: 
a) a water efficiency calculation in accordance with the Government's National Calculation 
Methodology for assessing water efficiency in new dwellings has been undertaken which 
demonstrates that no more than 110 litres of water per person per day shall be consumed within the 
development, and this calculation has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local 
Planning Authority; and, 
b) a mitigation package demonstrating that any additional nutrient input arising from the 
development will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of the protected European Sites, has 
been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
c) the water efficiency and nutrient mitigation measures have been implemented in accordance with 
the details approved under a) and b) of this condition. 
Reason: To prevent increased discharge of nitrogen into the water environment of European 
designated nature conservation sites in The Solent to comply with the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017 and Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029. 
 
 5.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until secure and weatherproof long-
term cycle storage facilities and secure short stay cycle parking facilities have been provided in 
accordance with a detailed scheme that shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
b) The cycle storage and parking facilities shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - In order to ensure that adequate cycle storage is provided to promote and encourage 
cycling as an alternative to use of the private motor car in compliance with Policy LP23 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 6.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until facilities for the storage and 
collection of refuse and recyclable materials generated by the development have been provided in 
accordance with a detailed scheme that shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
b) The waste storage and collection facilities shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - To ensure that adequate provision is made for the storage of refuse and recyclable 
materials and to comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 9 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
 7.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until all boundary treatments 
including any gate, have been provided in accordance with details that shall have been submitted to 
and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The approved boundary treatment(s) shall thereafter be retained in accordance with the 
approved details. 
Reason - In order to protect the amenities of the area, and to comply with Policy LP10 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 8.  The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until hard and soft landscaping works 
have been carried out in accordance with a detailed scheme that shall be first submitted to and 
approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include plans showing 
details of hard surfacing materials and their position; and a planting plan, to include a replacement 
tree, and schedule of plants noting species, plant sizes and proposed numbers/densities. 
Reason - In the interest of the visual amenities of the area, and to comply with Policy LP10 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 9.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until biodiversity 
enhancement measures have been provided in accordance with plans and details that shall first be 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  
b) The approved biodiversity enhancement measures shall be permanently retained thereafter. 
Reason - To ensure that biodiversity enhancements are provided as part of the development in 
accordance with Policy LP41 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan, 2011-2029. 
Reason - To conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance  with the Conservation Regulations 
2010, the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the NERC Act 2006, NPPF and with Policy LP44 of the 
of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
10.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the facilities shown on 
the approved plan  for the parking of vehicles, including any dropped crossing to the highway, have 
been provided. 
b) The parking facilities shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety and to ensure adequate car parking is provided and 
retained, and to comply with LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the Parking 
SPD. 
 
11.  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order amending, revoking or re-enacting that Order 
with or without modification), no extensions shall be erected to the dwelling hereby permitted, 
without the prior express permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - In the interest of preserving the amenities of the neighbouring occupiers and having 
regard to the extent of development permitted and to comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 10 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 11 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 02.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/00133/FULL  
APPLICANT: Ms Laura Mitchell  Primadore Limited 
DATE REGISTERED: 02.04.2019 

 
ERECTION OF PART TWO AND A HALF, PART THREE, PART FOUR, PART FIVE AND 
PART SIX STOREY BUILDING (WITH SEMI-BASEMENT PARKING AREA) TO PROVIDE 
12NO. ONE BEDROOM AND 29NO. TWO BEDROOM FLATS WITH ASSOCIATED 
ACCESS, CAR PARKING, REFUSE AND SECURE CYCLE STORAGE FACILITIES & 
LANDSCAPING (as amended by SuDS Maintenance and Management Plan received 
23.10.19, Environmental Impacts Mitigation Statement received 17.07.2020 and 
Construction Environmental Management Plan received 10.08.2020) 
Site Of Former Crewsaver Building  Land To The North Of Harbour Road  Mumby Road  
Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 1AQ 

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The application site measures approximately 0.18 hectares in area and is located on the northern 
side of Harbour Road, immediately to the east of its junction with Mumby Road (A32). The site, 
which is identified as an area of archaeological interest, is located within the Gosport Waterfront 
Mixed Use site, as defined by Policy LP4 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan, 2011-2029. 
 
2. Portsmouth Harbour, a Special Protection Area (SPA), Ramsar Site and Site of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI), is to the north. The harbour is of international importance to wading birds with 
noteworthy flora including Nettle-leaved Goosefoot, Dwarf Eelgrass, Narrow-Leaved Eelgrass, 
Marine Eelgrass and Golden Samphire. The site is located within Flood Zones 2 and 3.  
 
3. The site is currently being redeveloped pursuant to a planning permission for 31 flats in a four 
storey building granted in 2015 (under reference 14/00550/FULL), the three storey building formerly 
on the site having been previously demolished. Harbour Road provides access to a number of 
commercial units/sites, including the adjacent Gosport Boat Yard and the associated slipway. 
Unrestricted, on-street car parking, is available on Harbour Road, between double yellow lines that 
have been implemented in order to maintain access across existing vehicular entrances. Mumby 
Road is a two-way carriageway (including a designated cycle lane) that is subject of a 30 mile per 
hour speed restriction.  
 
4. To the south of the application site, and on the opposite side of Harbour Road, is a two storey, 
red brick, building known as Clarence Square Council School. The building is included on the 
Borough Council's List of Buildings of Local Interest for its historic and architectural interest. The 
principal façade of the building originally addressed Clarence Square, an area of the town laid out 
by the late 17th Century, and developed around a natural inlet in the coastline, which is now 
occupied by the application site, upon reclaimed land. During the 18th Century, the southern side of 
Clarence Square saw the erection of a row of Georgian townhouses to the east of the Clarence 
Square Council School. The town houses were demolished as part of the program of post-war slum 
clearance and the Clarence Square Council School building is, therefore, all that remains from the 
original development. The building still contains a number of timber sash windows in its southern 
and northern elevations. The principal access into the building is from the northern elevation, 
however, there are also accesses in the western elevation, fronting Mumby Road. There is a 
modern, two storey extension on the western side of the building, the first floor of which has been 
finished using corrugated sheeting. The building is currently used as office space, as well as for 
retail and storage. There is a vehicular access on the eastern side of the building which is used to 
service a set of double doors.  
 
5. The land, to the south-east of the application site (and adjacent to the Clarence Square Council 
School), has been redeveloped by the erection of a ten storey tower comprising 48 one and two 
bedroom retirement apartments. Beyond the residential tower is a foodstore. 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 12 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

6. Immediately to the north west of the application site is the Clarence Wharf Industrial Estate, 
which comprises a total of 11 no. industrial units operating under Classes B1, B2 and B8 of the Use 
Classes Order. The buildings are single storey and have been constructed from a combination of 
red brick and corrugated metal. The blank, rear elevations of Units 1-6 are sited directly adjacent to 
the application site. 
 
7. Approximately 200m further to the north-west, and on the eastern side of Mumby Road, is the 
Rope Quays development, a mixed-use development comprising a combination of residential and 
commercial floorspace, as well as a doctor's surgery. The development is constructed, for the most 
part, from red brick and render, with significant areas of glazing and exposed metalwork. The 
buildings range in height from two to fourteen stories. 
 
8. To the north and east of the site is the Gosport Boat Yard, which is used, primarily for the storage 
and repair of boats. The boat yard, which wraps around the northern extent of the application site, is 
accessed via a set of gates, approximately 80m to the east. 
 
9. Public car parking (short stay during the day) is available in the North Cross Street 
(approximately 100m away) and Minnett Road South (approximately 300m away) public car parks 
with long stay parking being available in the Minnett Road North public car park (approximately 
300m away). 
 
10. The Gosport Bus Interchange and Ferry Terminal are located approximately 450m to the south 
east. The Ferry Terminal provides access to Portsmouth Harbour which, itself, provides access to 
the Bus Interchange and the railway station. The Bus Interchange provides services to a range of 
locations within the Borough, as well as services to Fareham and Southampton. 
 
11. Planning permission was granted in 2015 under reference 14/00550/FULL for the residential 
redevelopment of the site and the construction of 31 flats in a four-storey building. This permission 
has been implemented and is extant. Two further applications have been submitted, for 49 and 47 
flats respectively, which both included a nine story tower adjacent to the harbour, which were both 
refused on parking grounds. The last of these applications (reference 17/00570/FULL for 47 flats) 
was the subject of an appeal that was dismissed. 
 
12. This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a part two and a half, part three, 
part four, part five and part six storey building (with semi-basement parking area) to provide 12 one 
bedroom and 29 two bedroom flats together with associated access, refuse and secure cycle 
storage facilities & landscaping. 
 
13.  The building would be sited 15m from the northern (principal) elevation of the adjacent 
Clarence Square Council School building and set approximately 4m further forward (towards 
Mumby Road) than the building which used to be on the site. With the exception of a four storey, 
projecting element (which would be sited 2m off the boundary with Clarence Wharf Industrial 
Estate), the rear (north western) elevation of the building would be set off the boundary with 
Clarence Wharf Industrial Estate by 11m. The south eastern elevation of the building would be sited 
15m from the Gosport Boat Yard. 
 
14. The building would have two main elements, a six storey tower with a setback top floor sited 
adjacent to the water, and a part two, three and four storey block adjacent to Harbour Road. The 
maximum height of the building would be approximately 20m above ground level with the 
subordinate block having a height of 1.65m. The recessed top floor would be set back over 1.5m 
from the main façade of the tower and would be built with a gull-wing roof that has been designed 
with a projecting eaves detail. 
 
15. The majority of the building would be finished in red brick or white coloured render, with the 
rendered section on the south western side of the building would front the Harbour Road/Mumby 
Road junction and would be clearly visible when turning in to Harbour Road. It would be two storeys 
high (with a roof terrace) and would provide the principal entrance into the building. The ground 
floor would contain a large, glazed lobby, which would provide a reception/concierge area, serving 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 13 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

the proposed flats. The lobby area would be accessed via a set of external steps, together with a 
level access lift, which would provide disabled access into the building. Areas of soft landscaping 
would be provided on either side of the steps, one of which would include facilities for visitor cycle 
parking in the form of three hoops. The landscaped areas would be enclosed by 1.1m high, black 
painted railings. An additional area of soft landscaping would be provided on the north western side 
of the site, at the junction between Harbour Road and Mumby Road. 
 
16. The red brick projection on the north western side of the building would be four storeys high and 
would be sited 2m from the shared boundary with Clarence Wharf Industrial Estate. It would be set 
back 29m from the south western elevation of the building and 45m from the highway. There would 
be no windows in the north western elevation of the projection, facing towards the adjacent 
Clarence Wharf Industrial Estate.  
 
17. The building would be set back approximately 3m from the back edge of Harbour Road. With 
the exception of the four storey element, the majority of the north western elevation will be sited 
11m from the shared boundary with the Clarence Wharf Industrial Estate. 
 
18. There would be projecting, glazed balconies on all elevations of the building. The building would 
have aluminium, powder coated windows and doors (grey) with stainless steel balustrades and 
hand rails to the balconies.  
 
19. The main difference between this proposal and the permitted scheme is the inclusion of a tower 
adjacent to the Harbour which would rise to 6 storeys. The tower would be finished in a mix of red 
brick and white render. Where it would face Mumby and Harbour Roads, the current proposal would 
be of a similar four storey scale, appearance and finish to the permitted scheme. 
 
20. In the interest of mitigating flood risk, the whole building would be constructed on supporting 
columns to avoid habitable accommodation at ground floor level. The resultant space beneath the 
building would be utilised to provide semi-basement car parking for 41 cars (equating to 1 space per 
dwelling). 
 
21. The semi-basement car park would be accessed from the south western corner of the site, via 
Harbour Road and down graded slopes to account for the difference in levels. The parking would be 
arranged around two cores, which would contain plant and lift accesses to the residential 
accommodation above. The semi-basement would also accommodate facilities for the storage of 
refuse and recyclable materials (in the form of 16no. 1,100 litre bins). The plans indicate that the 
stairwells and stores would be built with flood protective walls. Steps would be provided at the south 
western and north eastern ends of the semi basement in order to provide access onto street level. 
Cycle parking for the proposed flats would be provided within the flat units themselves, within the 
hallway of each unit. A refuse collection area would be provided adjacent to Harbour Road. 
 
22. In addition to providing all living accommodation at 4.8m AOD, as part of the flood defence 
strategy for the site, the south eastern and north eastern sides of the building would be enclosed by 
a new, 1.8m high, brickwork, flood defence wall, complete with gabion stone panels. The application 
is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment which outlines the proposed flood mitigation measures 
and considers matters such as fluvial flood risk, tidal flood risk, groundwater flooding, overland flow 
and sewer flooding, together with the implications for surface water drainage. 
 
23. The application is supported by a Phase 1 Ecological Survey that assessed the potential for the 
previous building to provide habitat for protected species, including bats and considers the potential 
impact of the proposed development on birds present within the adjacent SPA. The applicant has 
indicated that swift boxes would be incorporated in the design of the building to enhance the 
biodiversity value of the site. 
 
24. The application is accompanied by an Affordable Housing Viability Report that has been 
independently reviewed by the District Valuer. The application is also supported by a Transport 
Statement, which assesses the likely car parking requirements of the proposal and the impact of the 
development on the existing highway network. An Acoustic Report has been submitted in order to 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 14 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

establish the existing background noise levels associated with the adjacent commercial units and 
the potential impact on prospective occupiers with regard to noise disturbance from neighbouring 
commercial premises. The report includes an assessment of the noise associated with nearby 
marine engineering works. The application is also accompanied by a Planning Statement, a Design 
& Access Statement and a Conservation Appraisal & Heritage Impact Assessment. 
 
25. The main difference between the current proposal and most recently refused scheme is a 
reduction in the level of development that has reduced the height of the tower by three floors, with 
the proposal being for 6 less flats overall with more one-bed and less two-bed units. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
14/00550/FULL - demolition of existing building and erection of a four storey building to provide 7 
no. one bedroom flats, 23 no. two bedroom flats and 1 no. three bedroom flat, with associated 
access, car parking, refuse and cycle storage - permitted 18.12.15 
 
17/00143/FULL - erection of a part nine, part eight, part four, part three & part two storey building 
(with semi-basement parking area) to provide 10 no. one bedroom flats and 39 no. two bedroom 
flats, with associated access, car parking, refuse and cycle storage & landscaping - refused 
19.10.2017 
 
17/00570/FULL - erection of a part nine, part eight, part four, part three & part two storey building 
(with semi-basement parking area) to provide 6 one bedroom flats and 41 two bedroom flats, with 
associated access, car parking, refuse and cycle storage & landscaping - refused on parking 
grounds 12.06.2018. Subsequent appeal dismissed 26.09.2018. 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 LP2  Infrastructure 
 LP3  Spatial Strategy 
 LP4  The Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre 
 LP10  Design 
 LP13  Locally Important Heritage Assets 
 LP22  Accessibility to New Development 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 LP24  Housing 
 LP37  Access to the Coast and Countryside 
 LP42  International and Nationally Important Habitats 
 LP44  Protecting Species and Other Features of Nature Conservation Importance 
 LP45  Flood Risk and Coastal Erosion 
 LP47  Contamination and Unstable Land 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Policy Guidance Note:  Securing Employment and Training 

Measures through planning obligations April 2012 
 Gosport Borough Council Waterfront and Town Centre:  Supplementary Planning Document:  

March 2018 
 Solent Special Protection Areas Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol April 2018 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019 
 
 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 15 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

Consultations 
  
 HCC Ecology No objection subject to completion of HRA. 
  
 Queen's Harbour Master No response received. 
  
 Building Control No response received. 
  
 Streetscene Waste & Cleansing No objection. Kerbside collection area will be 

required. 
  
 Hampshire Fire And Rescue Service No objection. 
  
 Environment Agency (Hants & IOW) No objection subject to implementation of 

flood protection measures. 
  
 Housing Services Strategic No objection subject to economic viability 

case being robustly assessed and any 
possible contributions being secured. 

  
 Environmental Health Contaminated Land - No objection. 

Noise - No objection. Recommends 
imposition of condition to secure noise 
mitigation measures set out in submitted 
Acoustic Report. 

  
 Southern Water No objection subject to conditions relating to 

details of foul and surface water drainage. 
  
 Local Highway Authority No objection subject to conditions relating to 

construction methodology, provision of car 
and cycle parking, details of access 
arrangements. 

  
 Eastern Solent Coastal Partnership No objection. 
  
 HCC Local Lead Flood Authority No objection. 
  
 HCC Education Office No education contribution needed. 
  
 Natural England No objection subject to the mitigation 

measures set out in the Appropriate 
Assessment undertaken in accordance with 
Regulation 63 of the Conservation of 
Species and Habitats Regulations 2017 (as 
amended) being secured. 
 
Since this application will result in a net 
increase in residential accommodation, 
impacts to the coastal Special Protection 
Area(s) and Ramsar site(s) may result from 
increased recreational pressure. Gosport 
Borough Council has measures in place to 
manage these potential impacts through the 
agreed strategic solution (SRMP) which we 
consider to be ecologically sound. 
 
Subject to the appropriate financial 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 16 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

contribution being secured, Natural England 
is satisfied that the proposal will mitigate 
against the potential recreational impacts of 
the development on the site(s). It is Natural 
England's view that the Solent Mitigation 
Recreation Strategy Contribution adequately 
mitigates the effects of the development on 
potential recreational impacts on the 
designated sites. 
 
With regard to deterioration of the water 
environment, Natural England is aware that 
the applicant will make a financial 
contribution to the Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Wildlife Trust to offset the amount of 
nitrogen produced by the development. This 
mitigation should be in place prior to the 
occupation and subsequent operational 
impacts caused by the occupation of the 
residential properties. 
 
Avoidance or mitigation measures have been 
identified as being able to prevent impacts 
through noise disturbance, visual 
disturbance and waterborne pollution. 
Natural England are satisfied with this, 
provided that the mitigation measures are 
secured with the permission. 

  
 Royal Society For The Protection Of Birds No response received. 
  
 Crime Prevention & Design No response received. 
 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
11 letters of objection 
Issues raised:- 
- overdevelopment of site 
- loss of privacy between proposals and neighbouring McCarthy & Stone development 
- inadequate parking 
- increased traffic affecting access 
- poor design 
- impact on infrastructure 
- loss of employment land 
- inaccurate Traffic Assessment 
- insufficient access for firefighting 
- loss of view 
- no affordable housing 
- adverse environmental impact 
- impact on existing commercial operations 
- potential drainage issues 
- parking spaces undersized and do not conform to SPD 
- inadequate provision for servicing of proposal development 
- Flood Risk Assessment questionable 
- undersized flats 
- inappropriate provision for refuse collection 
 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 17 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

Principal Issues 
 
1. Matters associated with access for fire and rescue purposes are dealt with under the Building 
Regulations. The potential impact of construction works on the structure of neighbouring buildings 
would fall outside of the scope of the planning system. The loss of a view is not a material planning 
consideration. Whilst the site is located in an area of archaeological interest, the planning conditions 
imposed on the previous permission have been complied with and therefore no further 
archaeological work is required. The site is not allocated for employment purposes with the principle 
of a residential redevelopment having been established by the granting of the earlier planning 
permission. Accordingly the main issues in this case are the acceptability of the additional 
development now proposed, the acceptability of the design of the amended proposal and the impact 
of the development on the character and visual amenity of the locality and the setting of the 
adjacent Locally Listed Building,  the amenity of adjacent and prospective users/occupiers, whether 
the development can be delivered without prejudicing the access and servicing arrangements of 
adjacent uses, or the future redevelopment of adjoining land, whether appropriate provisions can be 
made for access, car and cycle parking, refuse storage and collection and servicing and whether 
the development can be delivered without having a harmful impact on the interests of nature 
conservation, flooding and land contamination. 
 
2. Policy LP4 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan identifies the application site as forming part of the 
Waterfront redevelopment area that has the potential to provide approximately 700 new dwellings. 
The provision of dwellings in this location would also accord with the aims and objectives of the 
emerging Waterfront Supplementary Planning Document. The provision of 41 residential units 
would further contribute towards this objective. Having regard to the foregoing the principle of the 
additional 10 dwellings is considered acceptable, with the site's location within 500m of a range of 
local services, facilities and transport links making it appropriate for a higher density development. 
 
3. Taking into consideration the permitted and historic uses of the site, together with the proposed 
access arrangements, the submitted plans demonstrate that the proposed development can be 
accommodated without compromising the existing access or servicing arrangements/everyday 
operations of neighbouring uses. The proposed development would not compromise the 
development potential of adjacent sites, including the Clarence Square Council School building and 
Gosport Boat Yard. The proposal would not result in the loss of existing public access to the coast 
and would not prejudice future proposals to extend public access along the waterfront as 
opportunities arise within the waterfront regeneration area and would therefore be in accordance 
with Policy LP37 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan. 
 
4.  The proposed building would have a relatively simple design, with extensive areas of glazing 
provided on the elevation fronting the Harbour Road/Mumby Road junction, which would create an 
attractive, active frontage that will contribute to the vibrancy and vitality of the area, clearly defining 
the entrance to the building. The simple form of the building, which will be complemented by the 
provision of projecting, glazed balconies, set at regular intervals, will provide a rhythm and 
uniformity to the elevations that is reflective of the previous building, whilst at the same time, 
providing an appropriate level of visual interest and articulation to the publicly visible facades. The 
top floors of the building have been set back from the main façade to reduce its perceived height 
and overall mass. The provision of gull-wing roofs will add interest to the design and it will be set 
back a sufficient distance to ensure that it does not create too dominant a feature. The submission 
is accompanied by details of external facing materials that are considered appropriate for a building 
of this scale in this location. 
 
5.  The provision of new areas of soft landscaping adjacent to the glazed entrance of the building 
would enhance the appearance of the site where it addresses the Harbour Road/Mumby Road 
frontage and would improve the public realm and pedestrian experience, helping to re-establish this 
currently underused section of Harbour Road as an important, historic link to the waterfront.  The 
building has been set off the application boundaries by a sufficient distance to ensure that it would 
not dominate the plot and has been sited and designed in such a way so as to respect the setting of 
the adjacent Locally Listed Building. It would not extend forward of the north eastern corner of this 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 18 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

building and would step-down in height at its south western end so as not to appear overbearing 
when compared to the scale and form of this adjacent structure.    
 
6.  The proposed 1.8m high flood defence wall on the south eastern side of the site would form an 
integral part of the flood defences for the site. The wall would include architectural detailing within 
the brickwork, so as to avoid the introduction of a long, uninterrupted section of brickwork on the 
south eastern side of the building. The proposed area of car parking has been carefully designed so 
as to be hidden from public view, thereby helping to ensure the development is not dominated by a 
large area of hard surfacing, or parked vehicles. The provision of lighting throughout the semi 
basement car park, to achieve a pleasant and safe environment, will be controlled by condition. 
 
7. Overall, the proposed development is considered acceptable in design terms. The building would 
not dominate its surroundings, nor harm the setting of the adjacent Listed Building and would 
complement the adjacent 10 storey residential tower and contribute towards the positive 
regeneration work earmarked for this particular part of the Borough. For the reasons set out above 
the proposal complies with Polices LP10, LP12 and LP13 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan. 
 
8. Measures to protect residents and adjacent commercial occupiers during construction will be 
controlled by planning condition together with the siting and design of any site compound, to ensure 
that disruption, in terms of noise, vibration and dust, is minimised. The siting of residential 
accommodation adjacent to commercial sites is not uncommon in waterfront locations, where the 
marine environment often constitutes a desirable location for both residential occupiers and 
marine/leisure based industries. The submitted Acoustic Report concludes that the adjacent uses 
will not result in unacceptable levels of disturbance to prospective occupiers of the proposed flats, 
but recommends that suitable glazing be installed so as to reduce the potential levels of disturbance 
associated with nearby marine related industries. In accordance with the recommendations of the 
report, a condition can be imposed requiring the approved details of the glazing to be installed in all 
windows and balconies, so as to preserve the residential amenity of prospective occupiers. This 
would be consistent with the previous permission. 
 
9. Due to its siting relative to existing buildings and the orientation of neighbouring properties it is 
considered that the proposed development would not have an unacceptable impact on the 
amenities of any neighbouring or prospective occupiers in terms of loss of light or outlook. Likewise, 
due to the orientation of the buildings, the proposal would not result in harmful levels of 
overshadowing. The proposed building would at its closest point be 25m from the recently built 
McCarthy and Stone development on the opposite side of Harbour Road. The separation distance 
between the tower element of this proposal and the tower in the McCarthy and Stone development 
would be approximately 60m. The proposed flats are considered to be of an appropriate size, with 
most meeting the space standards in the Design SPD or the recommended space standards set out 
in the National Technical Space Standards set out by central Government. A small number of the 
flats fall below the recommended sizes, however, given the need to make efficient use of Brownfield 
sites and the fact that habitable rooms would benefit from an appropriate outlook, it is considered 
that those undersized flats would not provide such a poor standard of accommodation for future 
occupiers to justify a refusal. Overall the proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policy 
LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan. 
 
10. The submitted Transport Assessment indicates that the proposed development would generate 
approximately 25 additional multi modal trips in each of the morning and evening peak hours. This 
would be an increase of 3 trips in each peak hour over and above that likely to be generated by the 
previously permitted scheme. The Transport Assessment indicates that even if all the trips 
associated with the proposed development were made by motor vehicle, this would, on average, 
equate to one additional motor vehicle movement on to the highway network every two minutes 
during the peak periods. Such an increased number of trips would not have a harmful impact on the 
capacity of the surrounding highway network or the safety or convenience of highway users. 
 
11. The proposed access would be sited 15m from the adjacent Harbour Road/Mumby Road 
junction and adequate visibility is available to ensure that there is no conflict between vehicles 
exiting the semi-basement car park and all other users of the public highway. Likewise, the siting of 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 19 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

the access is such that it will not interfere with the safe use of the access to the double doors in the 
Clarence Square Council School building. The Local Highway Authority have advised that the 
potential requirement to regulate car parking adjacent to the proposed vehicular access to allow 
safe entry to and egress from the site can be considered and secured under Highway legislation. 
The proposed access and servicing arrangements are similar to that previously permitted. It is 
considered that the detailed design of the access and associated alterations to the highway can be 
addressed through the imposition of a suitably worded planning condition. 
 
12. The Council's Parking Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) sets out the parking 
requirements for development proposals. It makes provision for applicants to justify their car parking 
provision where a development proposal does not comply with those standards. The permitted 
scheme for 31 flats included 42 car parking spaces to serve occupiers and visitors and as such met 
the standards in the Parking SPD which equates to a ratio of 1.35 spaces per dwelling. The 
proposed 41 flats should be served by 46 unallocated spaces to accord with standards in the 
Parking SPD, however only 41 are proposed, a ratio of 1 space per dwelling. The shortfall in on-site 
parking relative to the requirements in the Parking SPD is 5. The submitted Transport Assessment 
puts forward a case for a reduction in car parking based on flats having a lower level of car parking 
demand than houses with the same numbers of bedrooms. The site is located close to the High 
Street where a range of local services, facilities and amenities are available, and is also accessible 
by a number of modes of transport given it is within walking distance of the Gosport Bus Station and 
Ferry Terminal. The relatively easy access from the site to public transport reduces the potential 
reliance on the use of the private motor vehicle for future occupiers. Visitor and long stay cycle 
parking facilities would be provided at the site, in accordance with the requirements of the Parking 
SPD, which would also provide sustainable travel alternatives to the private motor vehicle. No 
dedicated visitor spaces would be provided, however, there are a number of public car parks within 
a short walking distance of the site which could serve to complement the on-site car parking 
provision. 
 
13. Whilst the proposed level of car parking would not accord with the Parking SPD, the application 
is accompanied by a robust case setting out the justification for a relaxation of the standards that 
meets the provisions of the SPD for such circumstances. The layout of the proposed semi-
basement car park is much improved compared with the previously refused scheme where the 
Inspector in dismissing the proposal on parking grounds declined to count substandard spaces as 
being useable. The proposed semi-basement car park layout would also be an improvement on the 
previously permitted layout which included a number of substandard spaces. Overall it is therefore 
considered that the proposed parking arrangements are acceptable and overcome the previous 
reason for refusal on parking grounds. The provision and subsequent retention of the car parking 
spaces and cycle parking facilities can be controlled by condition. In light of the above, the 
proposed parking and access arrangements are considered acceptable and would comply with 
Policies LP22 and LP23 of the Local Plan. 
 
14. The proposal will create 41 dwellings which are likely to result in increased recreational activity 
on the coast and a consequential impact on the protected species for which the Portsmouth 
Harbour SPA, the Solent and Southampton Water SPA and the Chichester and Langstone 
Harbours SPA are designated. To address this impact, a contribution towards appropriate 
mitigation, in accordance with the Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol, is required. The 
applicant has indicated a willingness to provide mitigation in accordance with the Protocol such that 
the proposal would comply with Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Local Plan. Subject to a legal 
agreement to secure the delivery of the mitigation the scheme would accord with Policies LP42 and 
LP44 of the Local Plan. 
 
15. There is no evidence of protected species being present within the site. In the interests of 
preserving the environment of over-wintering birds, a condition will be imposed to restrict the use of 
percussive piling, or works involving the use of heavy machinery, that result in a noise level 
exceeding 69bdA being audible when measured from the nearest point of the Portsmouth Harbour 
Special Protection Area during the over-wintering bird period (October - March inclusive), unless the 
existing noise level at the nearest point of the receptor site already exceeds 69dbA. If the resultant 
noise level would exceed the existing noise levels when measured from Portsmouth Harbour SPA, 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 20 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

no works would be permitted during the overwintering bird period. Subject to this condition, the 
proposed development would preserve the environment for the over-wintering bird population and 
comply with Policy LP44 of the Local Plan. The applicant has indicated that swift and bat boxes 
would be installed on the building and that new planting at the site would comprise a 70:30 ratio of 
native to non-native species. Subject to conditions to secure the implementation of the ecological 
enhancement measures, the proposed development would help to enhance the ecological value of 
the site, in accordance with the aims and objectives of the NPPF.  
 
16. Natural England has also raised concerns that new dwellings are causing increased levels of 
nitrogen and phosphorus input to the water environment in the Solent with evidence that these 
nutrients are causing eutrophication at European and internationally designated habitat sites and 
additional mitigation measures will be required to offset any increases in nitrogen discharges that 
would result from the proposals. Natural England advise that proposals for new residential 
development should achieve nitrogen neutrality to avoid harm to these sites.  
 
17. The applicant has provided a proposed mitigation strategy which involves off-setting the 
increase in nitrogen at the site, by a corresponding reduction in nitrogen elsewhere in the 
subcatchment. In this instance the land indicated as available as mitigation is on the Isle of Wight 
and will be owned and managed by the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust (HIWWT) which 
will be removed from agricultural use and managed as such for the lifetime of the development.  
The applicant will make a financial contribution to the HIWWT to purchase land credits to an 
equivalent level to offset the amount of nitrogen produced by the development (nitrogen budget).  
The HIWWT has provided written confirmation that subject to finalising the contractual 
arrangements, the Wildlife Trust has reserved an area sufficient to mitigate the nitrates generated 
by the proposal thereby offsetting the proposed development. Natural England has reviewed the 
Habitats Regulations Assessment/Appropriate Assessment and is satisfied with these proposed 
mitigation measures. The full details of these measures would be secured by planning condition, 
along with securing measures limiting water usage within the property to 110ltr per person per day. 
This is an acceptable approach to mitigating the proposed development and as such it would not 
cause harm to European and internationally designated protected sites in accordance with Policies 
LP42 and LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
18. Paragraph 7.38 of the Local Plan advises that, as the waterfront is located within Flood Zones 2 
and 3 and is allocated for comprehensive mixed use development, it has been the subject of a 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. The Local Plan advises that the site offers significant 
regeneration benefits that are unrivalled anywhere else in the Borough. In accordance with the 
NPPF, a sequential test has, therefore, been undertaken where it has been demonstrated that there 
are no alternative sites in the Borough. On this basis, the principle of developing within the Flood 
Zone has been established as being acceptable, provided appropriate mitigation can be achieved. 
The Environment Agency has confirmed that, by setting all proposed living accommodation at a 
level above 4.8m AOD, all residential units would remain free of flooding for the lifetime of the 
development. The walls enclosing the plant rooms and refuse stores within the semi-basement 
parking area would be built with enhanced flood protection walls. In the interests of public safety, 
the applicant has indicated that emergency evacuation measures will be put in place in the event 
that a flood event should occur. A condition can control the precise details of the Evacuation Plan, 
which would be required to demonstrate the availability of safe access to higher ground. 
 
19.  The development would provide a new surface water drainage system that will include 
provision of a storage volume to cater for run-off if the existing drainage system becomes tide 
locked. The Environment Agency has confirmed that this would provide an increased level of 
protection to the site and surrounding area. Subject to a condition to control this and the submission 
of details of how the flood defence wall will be delivered, maintained and operated over the lifetime 
of the development, the East Solent Coastal Partnership has confirmed that it considers the 
proposal to comply with the NPPF in respect of flooding and that the coastal defence proposals for 
this development are in line with the draft strategic policy recommendations. Subject to the 
submission and approval of the aforementioned measures, the proposed development would not 
increase the risk of flooding to people or property, or pollute controlled waters. The development, 
therefore, complies with the NPPF and Policy LP45 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan.  



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 21 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
20.  The developer has demonstrated that measures could be put in place to protect human health 
and controlled waters both during the construction phase and upon occupation. Any contamination 
would be subject to risk assessment and a series of mitigation measures could be agreed, 
depending on the type of any contamination identified and the receptor being affected. The 
necessary investigation and remediation measures, including implementation, would be secured by 
condition. Subject to this condition, the development complies with the NPPF and Policy LP47 of 
the Gosport Borough Local Plan. 
 
21. In accordance with Policy LP24 of the Local Plan, the applicant would normally be required to 
enter into a planning obligation to secure the provision of affordable housing on site. This would 
equate to 16 flats being made available on the affordable housing market. Policy LP24 also states 
that "where it can be clearly demonstrated that the provision of 40% affordable housing is not 
economically viable the Council will seek to negotiate a percentage of affordable housing as close 
as possible to the target level having regard to a site specific economic viability assessment". 
 
22. The application is accompanied by an Affordable Housing Viability Report which sought to 
demonstrate that the development could not provide any affordable housing without rendering the 
scheme financially unviable. The submitted Viability Report has been critically reviewed by the 
District Valuer (DVS) to establish its robustness. Whilst the DVS generally agreed that most of the 
costs and values set out were reasonable, they did conclude that projected sale values are not 
based on the best comparable evidence. The DVS advise that when using more representative 
sales values the overall value of the development would increase to a level where a financial 
contribution towards the off-site provision of affordable housing (in lieu of on-site provision) could be 
supported. 
 
23. The applicant has therefore agreed to provide a financial contribution of £250,000 towards the 
off-site provision of affordable housing in line with the recommendation of the DVS. Whilst this 
would not equate to a fully policy compliant contribution, it is the maximum that can be secured 
without the development becoming financially unviable. The applicant has also agreed that if the 
development is not developed in accordance with an agreed timescale the viability of the 
development will be reviewed and if the financial position has improved an additional contribution 
towards the off-site provision of affordable housing would be provided. These measures can be 
secured by a legal agreement, subject to which the proposal would be in accordance with Policy 
LP24 of the Local Plan. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
Subject to Section 106 agreement relating to  
 
 1. The payment of a financial contribution of £19,178.00 towards the work of the Solent 
Recreational Disturbance Mitigation Partnership; 
 2. The payment of a financial contribution of £250,000.00 towards the off-site provision of 
affordable housing; 
 3. A re-evaluation of the financial viability appraisal if construction has not reached 'core and 
shell' completion within a specified period; and, 
 4. The provision and implementation of an employment and skills plan. 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning with 
the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 22 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans and details:  
13.1980.186 Rev. P1 - Location Plan; 
13.1980.180 Rev. P3 - Site and Ground Floor Plans; 
13.1980.181 Rev. P2 - Proposed First and Second Floor Plans; 
13.1980.182 Rev. P3 - Proposed Third and Fourth Floor Plans 
13.1980.183 Rev. P2 - Proposed Fifth Floor and Roof Plans; 
13.1980.184 Rev. P2 - Proposed Elevations; 
13.1980.185 Rev. P1 - Materials and Boundary Treatments; 
13.1980.165 Rev. P2 - Hard Landscaping; 
13.1980.166 Rev. P1 - Soft Landscaping; 
13.1980.168 Rev. P1 - Swift & Bat box details 
13.1980.169 Rev. P1 - Waste collection; 
13.1980.170 Rev. P1 - Parking Prevention Measures; 
13.1980.171 Rev. P2 - External lighting; 
13.1980.172 Rev. P1 - External lighting; 
13.1980.173 Rev. P1 - Boundary Treatment; 
13.1980.174 Rev. P1 - Access Ramp; 
13.1980.175 Rev. P1 - Entrance Steps and Platform Lift; 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (by Ecosupport Ltd dated 7th August 2020); 
Flood Risk Assessment (by White Young Green Engineering dated March 2017); 
SuDS Maintainance & Management Plan (by Cowan Consultancy dated 21/10/2019). 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  None of the dwellings hereby permitted shall be occupied until: 
a) a water efficiency calculation in accordance with the Government's National Calculation 
Methodology for assessing water efficiency in new dwellings has been undertaken which 
demonstrates that no more than 110 litres of water per person per day shall be consumed within the 
development, and this calculation has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local 
Planning Authority; and, 
b) a mitigation package demonstrating that any additional nutrient input arising from the 
development will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of the protected European Sites, has 
been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
c) the water efficiency and nutrient mitigation measures have been implemented in accordance with 
the details approved under a) and b) of this condition. 
Reason: To prevent increased discharge of nitrogen into the water environment of European 
designated nature conservation sites in The Solent to comply with the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017 and Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029. 
 
 4.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (dated 7th August 2020 by Ecosupport Ltd) unless 
otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure the environment is protected and that construction works on site do not impact 
surrounding properties and/or adjacent occupiers and to comply with Policies LP10, LP22, LP23, 
LP39 and LP46 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 5.  No percussive piling or works involving the use of heavy machinery that results in a noise level 
exceeding 69bdA being audible when measured from the nearest point of the Portsmouth Harbour 
Special Protection Area (SPA) shall be permitted to take place during the overwintering period 
(October - March inclusive), unless the existing noise level at the nearest point of the Portsmouth 
Harbour Special Protection Area (SPA) already exceeds 69dbA, in which case, no works shall be 
undertaken during the specified period if the resultant noise level would exceed the existing noise 
level when measured from the sensitive receptor site. 
Reason - To preserve the environment for the over-wintering bird population and to comply with 
Policies LP10, LP42, LP43 and LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 23 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 6.  a) No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the flood mitigation 
measures set out in the Flood Risk Assessment (produced by White Young Green Engineering 
dated March 2017) have been provided. 
b) The flood mitigation measures shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - In the interests of reducing the risk of flooding to people and property and future users in 
compliance with Policy LP45 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 7.  a) No flat hereby permitted shall be occupied until windows and balcony doors have been 
installed in accordance with a detailed scheme, to include their appearance and finish together with 
measures to protect prospective occupiers from unacceptable levels of noise, that shall be 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The windows and doors shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development and to protect the residential 
amenities of future occupiers and to comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029. 
 
 8.  No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the approved hard 
landscaping has been completed. 
Reason - In the interests of amenity, the appearance of the locality and highway and pedestrian 
safety and to comply with Policies LP10 and LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 9.  The approved soft landscaping scheme shall be completed within six months from the 
completion of the building shell, or within the next available planting season. Any trees or plants 
which die are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased during the first five years, shall 
be replaced with others of identical species (or as may otherwise be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority) during the next planting season. 
Reason - In the interest of amenity and the appearance of the locality, and to comply with Policy 
LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
10.  a) No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the approved 
biodiversity enhancement measures have been provided. 
b) The swift and bat boxes shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - To comply with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policies LP38 and LP43 of 
the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
11.  a) No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the approved surface 
water drainage scheme has been provided. 
b) The surface water drainage scheme shall thereafter be retained in accordance with the approved 
details. 
Reason - To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to protect water quality, habitat and amenity, 
and ensure future maintenance of the surface water drainage system, and to comply with Policies 
LP39 and LP41 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
12.  a) No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until the approved external 
lighting scheme has been implemented. 
B) The approved lighting shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - In the interests of the amenity and safety of future occupiers to comply with Policy LP10 of 
the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
13.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a Flood Management Plan, 
including an Emergency Flood Evacuation Plan, to be implemented in the event of a flood, has 
been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The Flood Management Plan shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details. 
Reason - In the interests of safety, and to comply with Policy LP45 of the Gosport Borough Local 
Plan 2011-2029. 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 24 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

14.  a) The residential development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the access and 
parking areas shown on the approved plans have been provided. 
b) The access and parking areas shall be retained in accordance with the approved details 
thereafter unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety and the visual amenity of the locality and 
to comply with Policies LP10 and LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
15.  The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until: 
a) any redundant highway accesses to the site have been closed in accordance with a detailed 
scheme that shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority; and, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 
b) the approved measures necessary to prevent on street parking adjacent to the vehicular access 
have been implemented. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety and to comply with Policies LP10, LP22 and LP23 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
16.  a) The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until facilities for the parking and 
storage of cycles  shown on the approved plans have been provided. 
b) The approved facilities shall be retained and kept available for these purposes at all times. 
Reason - To ensure adequate bicycle parking facilities are provided and to comply with Policy LP10 
of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
17.  a) The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until facilities for the storage and 
collection of refuse and recyclable materials shown on the approved plans have been provided. 
b) The approved facilities shall be retained and kept available for these purposes at all times. 
Reason - In order to protect the amenities of the area, and to comply with Policies LP10, LP22 and 
LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
18.  a) If during any stage of the works, unexpected ground conditions or materials which suggest 
potential contamination are encountered, no further development or site clearance works shall be 
carried out until an investigation and risk assessment of the identified material/ground conditions 
has been undertaken and details of the findings along with a detailed remedial scheme, if required, 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) If required the development shall only proceed in accordance with the approved remediation 
strategy. The remediation scheme shall be fully implemented and, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority, shall be validated in writing by an independent competent 
person as agreed with the LPA prior to the first occupation of the development. 
Reason - To ensure that risks from land contamination, ground gases and contaminated 
groundwater to the future uses of the land, neighbouring land, surface water, groundwater and 
wider environment are mitigated so that the development can be carried out safely without any 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours or off site receptors in accordance with Policy LP47 of 
the Gosport Borough Local Plan, 2011-2029. 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 25 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 





Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 27 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 03.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/00157/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr David Brace  Starvale Developments 
DATE REGISTERED: 09.05.2019 

 
CHANGE OF USE FROM 1ST FLOOR TO PROVIDE 4NO. 2 BEDROOM FLATS AND 2ND 
FLOOR TO PROVIDE 3NO.1 BED FLATS; ERECTION OF 3RD STOREY (4TH FLOOR) 
TO EXISTING BUILDING AND ERECTION OF 4 STOREY SIDE EXTENSION TO 
PROVIDE 4NO. 1 BED FLATS; ERECTION OF STAIRCASE ON REAR ELEVATION; 
INSTALLATION OF WINDOWS ON FRONT, REAR AND SIDE ELEVATIONS AND 
ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING WINDOWS; AND, PROVISION OF REFUSE AND BICYCLE 
STORAGE (CONSERVATION AREA) (as amended by plans received 23.05.2019, 
31.05.2019 and 26.11.2019) 
9 - 11 High Street  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 1BX     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. This application relates to a predominantly three storey building located on the north side of High 
Street, adjoining the Travelodge. At ground level, the property forms part of the principal frontage of 
Gosport High Street with shops at ground floor level and three one-bedroom flats located on the first 
floor with one three-bedroom flat located at second floor level and accessed via an entranceway 
and staircase to the rear. The site is within the Town Centre that has a mixed character of retail and 
commercial properties with residential flats to the outer periphery of the central area and above 
some of the commercial premises. To the rear of the site is a service road that is partially owned by 
the Borough Council with some sections in private ownership.  
 
2. The site is within the High Street Conservation Area and to the west of the site, nos. 1-4 High 
Street and the Museum & Education Office on Walpole Road are Grade II Listed Buildings and 
there is a further Grade II Listed Building to the north of the site on North Street. 
 
3. To the north is Burnhams Walk, a residential flatted development with landscaped areas and car 
parking courtyards accessed off North Loading Road. There are short stay public car parking 
spaces to the north which are directly accessed from the service road. 
 
4. Planning permission was granted in 2017, under reference 16/00396/FULL for the floors above 8-
17 High Street for the erection of an additional storey, external alterations and change of use of the 
existing building to provide a 54 bedroom hotel (Class C1), with associated parking, storage and 
servicing. The overall height of the new building would have been 13.6m compared to the existing 
building height of 9.7m. This permission was not implemented.  
 
5. Planning permission is sought for the change of use for the 1st floor to provide 4, two-bedroom 
flats, the change of use of the  2nd floor to provide 3, one-bed flats, the  erection of an additional  
storey  to the existing building and the erection of a 4 storey side extension to provide 4, one-bed 
flats, the erection of staircase on rear elevation, the installation of windows on front and rear 
elevations and alterations to existing windows, and, the provision of refuse and bicycle storage 
facilities.  
 
6. The proposed additional storey would be 2.5m higher than the existing flat roof of the building, 
increasing the total height to 12.5m. This additional storey would be 0.3m below the finished roof 
height of the hotel and would be a Mansard style roof. Between nos. 8 - 9 High Street, there is an 
existing first floor parapet wall that reduces the visual dominance of a single storey building with a 
hipped roof that is sited on no.8. Behind the parapet wall, the existing single storey building in the 
gap between nos.8-9 would be demolished and replaced with a four-storey building.  
 
7. On the front elevation, windows of similar appearance to those on the hotel would be installed at 
first, second and third floor levels. The first and second floor levels would be rendered with the 
fourth floor Mansard style roof being tile hung. The front elevation would be split into four distinct 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 28 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

sections with a strong vertical emphasis, each sited above a shop front below. On the rear 
elevation, the existing eclectic mixture of windows would be replaced with design and opening sizes 
similar to those on the front elevation. To the rear, provision would be made for refuse/cycle storage 
and for an improved entrance staircase. There are several existing windows at first and second floor 
level on the side elevation of the property, some of which would be infilled. No on-site car parking is 
proposed as part of the development. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
K.7433 - shops with offices/storage above at 12-16 High Street - permitted 17.04.1972 
 
16/00396/FULL - nos. 8-17 High Street, erection of additional storey, external alterations and 
change of use of existing building to provide a 54 bedroom hotel (class C1), with associated 
parking, storage and servicing (Conservation Area) (amended description and plans received 
14.11.2016, 12.12.16, 13.12.16 and 20.12.2016) - permitted 19.01.2017 but not implemented 
 
18/00131/FULL - demolition of 12-16 High Street and erection of four storey building to provide 70 
bedroom hotel (Class C1) with ancillary bar/cafe and retail shop (Class A1) to ground floor, with 
associated parking, storage and servicing - permitted 06.07.2018 and implemented 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 LP3  Spatial Strategy 
 LP4  The Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre 
 LP10  Design 
 LP11  Designated Heritage Assets including Listed Buildings, Scheduled Ancient Monuments 

and Registered Historic Parks & Gardens 
 LP12  Designated Heritage Assets: Conservation Areas 
 LP22  Accessibility to New Development 
 LP24  Housing 
 LP27  Principal, District and Neighbourhood Centres 
 LP28  Uses in Centres 
 LP42  International and Nationally Important Habitats 
 LP43  Locally Designated Nature Conservation Sites 
 LP44  Protecting Species and Other Features of Nature Conservation Importance 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Waterfront and Town Centre:  Supplementary Planning Document:  

March 2018 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 Solent Special Protection Areas Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol April 2018 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019 
 
Particular obligations fall upon the Local Planning Authority in determining any application which 
might affect a listed building or its setting or a Conservation Area. Section 66 of The Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas Act 1990 (as amended) places a duty on the authority to have 
"special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses". Section 72 of the same act requires 
that the authority pay: "special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character 
or appearance of a conservation area". 
 
 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 29 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

Consultations 
  
 The Gosport Society Objection on poor design and inadequate 

vehicular parking. 
  
 Natural England No objection subject to mitigation measures 

relating to nutrient neutrality and recreational 
disturbance. 
 
Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy - Since 
this application will result in a net increase in 
residential accommodation, impacts to the 
coastal Special Protection Area(s) and 
Ramsar site(s) may result from increased 
recreational pressure. Gosport Borough 
Council has measures in place to manage 
these potential impacts through the agreed 
strategic solution (SRMP Definitive Strategy) 
which we consider to be ecologically sound.  
  
Subject to the appropriate financial 
contribution being secured, Natural England 
is satisfied that the proposal will mitigate 
against the potential recreational impacts of 
the development on the site(s). It is Natural 
England's view that the Solent Mitigation 
Recreation Strategy Contribution adequately 
mitigates the effects of the development on 
potential recreational impacts on the 
designated sites. 
 
Nutrient Neutrality - with regard to 
deterioration of the water environment, 
Natural England is aware that your authority 
is working with Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Wildlife Trust (HIWWT) to provide a 
reduction in nitrogen elsewhere in the 
catchment.  
 
If the applicant has provided written 
confirmation that they will contribute towards 
offsetting to the value of 1kg of nitrates and 
the Council, as competent authority, is 
satisfied that the approach will ensure the 
proposal is nutrient neutral and the 
necessary measures can be fully secured; 
Natural England raises no further concerns. 

  
 Environmental Health No objection. 
  
 Streetscene Waste & Cleansing No objection. 
  
 Hampshire Fire And Rescue Service No objection, subject to compliance with 

Building and Fire Regulations. 
 
 
 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 30 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

Response to Public Advertisement 
 
1 objection received 
Issues raised:- 
- the Council should not be turning the town centre into a housing estate 
- more shops and infrastructure are needed  
- this development does not add value to the local economy or local residents  
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. The main issues are whether: the proposal is acceptable in principle, the impact in design terms 
and on the character and appearance of heritage assets, whether the proposal is acceptable in 
amenity terms, whether there is sufficient parking and any impact on protected species and 
habitats. 
 
2. The site is located within the Urban Area Boundary and designated Town Centre where Policies 
LP4 and LP28 and paragraph 85(f) of the National Planning Policy Framework encourage the use 
of uppers floors for residential purposes. The Waterfront and Town Centre SPD promote the 
provision of additional dwellings in the Town Centre. The principle of both the conversion of the 
existing building and the construction of additional floors to provide further flats are therefore 
acceptable, subject to compliance with other policies in the Local Plan. 
 
3. Policy LP28 also requires that any upper floor residential development: 'does not affect the 
function (including servicing) of any commercial units; does not have a detrimental effect on 
adjoining uses; and, includes separate independent and appropriate access to serve the residential 
accommodation'. In this case the existing first floor has separate access points to both the front and 
rear of the site that are suitable for residential access and separate storage of refuse. The proposal 
would not have an impact on the operation of existing uses. The proposal would introduce a need to 
provide facilities for the storage of cycles and waste. The submitted plans indicate that these would 
be provided to the rear of the shop unit in an area of hardstanding that currently serves as the 
service area for the shop. The cycle and bin storage facilities shown are adequate to meet the 
needs of the proposal. The plans also detail an area of storage for the retail unit. The proposal 
would comply with Policy LP28 of the Local Plan. 
 
4. The existing plot, which is substantial in terms of its width and length, is capable of 
accommodating an additional storey and development to this height would be in keeping with the 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. As the development would predominantly be 
built upon its existing footprint, it would not compromise the established building line on High Street. 
Furthermore, the articulation provided by the windows, their reveals and the rendered sections 
would be sympathetic additions, relate acceptably to neighbouring properties and would provide 
relief to, and break-up the additional building bulk. Due to this and the visual gap with neighbouring 
properties to the north and south, the development would not compete for dominance with the 
Travelodge or presence within the street scene or Conservation Area. For these reasons, the 
development would enhance the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and the 
setting of Listed Buildings, given the appearance of the existing building. This is acceptable and in 
accordance with Policies LP10, LP11 and LP12 of the Local Plan and Design SPD.  
 
5. The proposed materials have been partially indicated in relation to the front and rear elevations 
on the submitted drawings and planning statement.  As the colour, texture and type of all the 
materials for the development have not been submitted and form an integral part of the overall 
quality, these details could be secured through a suitably worded planning condition to ensure the 
Conservation Area is preserved. With a condition, this would not conflict with Policies LP10, LP11 or 
LP12 of the Local Plan. 
 
6. Ten of the flats would meet or exceed the minimum sizes set out in the Design SPD and the 
Nationally Described Spaces Standards (NDSS) published by Central Government. Flat 10 on the 
proposed third floor would fall 3.1m2 below the minimum requirement of 37m2 in the NDSS. 
However, given the internal layout and the need to make efficient use of land and buildings, it is 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 31 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

considered that the shortfall is acceptable in this instance. Each of the dwellings would be single 
aspect rooms, providing acceptable living standards with regards to outlook, access to light and 
privacy and would not conflict with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan.  
 
7. None of the flats would have a shared/private garden or balcony. However, given their location in 
the Town Centre and proximity of open space and leisure facilities, this would not be harmful to 
living conditions and would accord with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan and the Design SPD.  
 
8. The Design SPD recommends that the design and layout of residential development should 
ensure that reasonable visual privacy is provided for the residents within dwellings. Spacing 
between dwellings should allow for satisfactory space around the building to be provided to prevent 
cramped and congested layouts. Where properties face one another, except where overlooking a 
street or public space, the Design SPD does not recommend a minimum distance separation and 
each case should be determined on its own merits.  
 
9. Due to the distance separation of some 60m with residential dwellings to the north, there would 
not be a harmful impact on amenity with regards to loss of light, outlook, privacy or increased sense 
of enclosure. With properties on the southern side of High Street and the 20m distance separation, 
it is considered that given the established built nature of the Town Centre to three storeys or more, 
there would not be a harmful impact on amenity with regards to loss of light, outlook, privacy or 
increased sense of enclosure. This is acceptable and would accord with Policy LP10 of the Local 
Plan and Design SPD.   
 
10. As the development is within an established mixed use area with high levels of street lighting, 
the proposed development would not result in harmful increase in light spillage and would afford an 
acceptable level of natural surveillance. This is acceptable and in accordance with Policy LP10 of 
the Local Plan. 
 
11. Due to the proximity of neighbouring properties and the close proximity of Portsmouth Harbour 
Special Protection Area, the demolition and construction is likely to give rise to increased dust and 
dirt during works. For these reasons, it is considered necessary to secure details on how the 
construction and environmental impact of the development would be managed. The importance of 
the High Street in serving businesses and homes also results in the necessity to reduce the impact 
on the local highways network and parking. As such, a pre-commencement condition requiring 
details to be submitted is necessary. The applicant has agreed to the imposition of this condition. 
This is acceptable and in accordance with Policies LP10, LP22, LP23, LP44, LP46 and LP47 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
12. The proposal does not include the provision of any parking and the site is not capable of 
providing any. The applicant contends that the as the site is located within the Town Centre future 
occupiers would have easy access both to public transport and to a wide range of services and 
amenities. Given the aspiration of the Local Plan to provide increasing housing in the Town Centre 
and having regard to its location very close to a range of local shops, services, public car parks and 
public transport, it is considered that a parking free development would not give rise to any 
demonstrable harm in amenity or highway terms. The proposal would therefore not conflict with 
Policy LP23 of the Local Plan or with the Parking SPD. 
 
13. An adequate storage area for refuse and recyclables has been indicated on the site plans. A 
condition requiring this to be provided prior to occupation of the flats is necessary and would accord 
with Policies LP10 and LP23 of the Local Plan. 
 
14. The proposal will introduce additional dwellings which is likely to result in increased recreational 
activity on the coast and a consequential impact on the protected species for which the Portsmouth 
Harbour SPA, the Solent and Southampton Water SPA and the Chichester and Langstone 
Harbours SPA are designated. To address this impact, a contribution towards appropriate 
mitigation, in accordance with the Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol, is required and this 
has been paid. There is no evidence that the site supports notable or endangered species and none 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 32 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

are a threat as a result of the development, however, a condition requiring appropriate biodiversity 
enhancement is considered appropriate.  
 
15. Natural England has also raised concerns that new dwellings are causing increased levels of 
nitrogen and phosphorus input to the water environment in the Solent with evidence that these 
nutrients are causing eutrophication at European and internationally designated habitat sites and 
additional mitigation measures will be required to offset any increases in nitrogen discharges that 
would result from the proposals. Natural England advise that proposals for new residential 
development should achieve nitrogen neutrality to avoid harm to these sites.  
 
16. The applicant has provided a proposed mitigation strategy which involves off-setting the 
increase in nitrogen at the site, by a corresponding reduction in nitrogen elsewhere in the 
subcatchment. In this instance the land indicated as available as mitigation is on the Isle of Wight 
and will be owned and managed by the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust (HIWWT) which 
will be removed from agricultural use and managed as such for the lifetime of the development.  
The applicant will make a financial contribution to the HIWWT to purchase land credits to an 
equivalent level to offset the amount of nitrogen produced by the development (nitrogen budget).  
The HIWWT has provided written confirmation that subject to finalising the contractual 
arrangements, the Wildlife Trust has reserved an area sufficient to mitigate 1 kg of nitrates 
generated, offsetting the proposed development. Natural England has reviewed the Habitats 
Regulations Assessment/Appropriate Assessment and is satisfied with these proposed mitigation 
measures. The full details of these measures would be secured by planning condition, along with 
securing measures limiting water usage within the property to 110ltr per person per day. This is an 
acceptable approach to mitigating the proposed development and as such it would not cause harm 
to European and internationally designated protected sites in accordance with Policies LP42 and 
LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning with 
the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development, hereby permitted, must be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans:  
Location Plan and Proposed Bin Store (KAD 01 A) and Proposed Elevations, Floor Plans, Cycle 
Store and Roof Plan (KAD 01 A PRO Rev E) 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP1 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  a) Construction above slab level shall not commence until details of all external facing and 
roofing materials shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason - To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory, and to comply 
with Policies LP10 and LP12 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 4.  a) No development shall commence until a Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP) for the demolition and construction of the development, hereby permitted, has been 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  
b) The development must be carried out in accordance with the approved details for the duration of 
the works. 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 33 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

Reason - To safeguard the amenity of occupiers of adjoining properties, highway and pedestrian 
safety, the character and appearance of the area and to prevent pollution in accordance with 
Policies LP10, LP22, LP44, LP46 and LP47 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the 
NPPF. 
 
 5.  The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until: 
a) a water efficiency calculation in accordance with the Government's National Calculation 
Methodology for assessing water efficiency in new dwellings has been undertaken which 
demonstrates that no more than 110 litres of water per person per day shall be consumed within the 
development, and this calculation has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local 
Planning Authority; and, 
b) a mitigation package demonstrating that any additional nutrient input arising from the 
development will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of the protected European Sites, has 
been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
c) the water efficiency and nutrient mitigation measures have been implemented in accordance with 
the details approved under a) and b) of this condition. 
Reason: To prevent increased discharge of nitrogen into the water environment of European 
designated nature conservation sites in The Solent to comply with the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017 and Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029. 
 
 6.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until biodiversity 
enhancement measures have been provided in accordance with plans and details that shall first be 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  
b) The approved biodiversity enhancement measures shall be permanently retained thereafter. 
Reason - To ensure that biodiversity enhancements are provided as part of the development in 
accordance with Policy LP41 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan, 2011-2029. 
Reason - To conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance  with the Conservation Regulations 
2010, the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the NERC Act 2006, NPPF and with Policy LP44 of the 
of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 7.  a) Notwithstanding the submitted details, the new dwellings on the first, second and third floor 
levels, hereby permitted, shall not be occupied until details on the parking layout for bicycle parking 
on-site has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  
b) The development must be carried out in accordance with the approved details and made 
available for use before any of the new dwellings on the first, second and third floor levels are first 
occupied.  
Reason - To ensure that adequate provision for the parking of vehicles and cycles is provided in 
accordance with Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, the Gosport Borough 
Council SPD Parking 2014 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 8.  a) The development, hereby permitted, shall not be occupied until a detailed scheme of security 
lighting for the rear entrance and refuse/cycles stores has been submitted to and approved, in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) Any security lighting shall thereafter be installed and retained in accordance with approved 
details. 
Reason - In order to protect the amenities of the area and to reduce anti-social behaviour and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 9.  The new dwellings on the first, second and third floor levels, hereby permitted, shall not be 
occupied until the facilities for the storage of refuse have been provided in accordance with 
approved plan KAD 02 A PRO Rev C. The refuse storage facilities shall thereafter be retained for 
that purpose at all times. 
Reason - In order to ensure that adequate refuse storage facilities are available in compliance with 
Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan, 2011 - 2029. 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 34 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 35 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 04.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 20/00051/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr D Brace  Starvale Developments 
DATE REGISTERED: 04.02.2020 

 
CHANGE OF USE OF FIRST FLOOR FROM SNOOKER CLUB (CLASS D2) TO FORM 4 
FLATS AND ERECTION OF TWO ADDITIONAL STOREYS TO FORM 5 ADDITIONAL 
FLATS (9 FLATS IN TOTAL) WITH ASSOCIATED REFUSE AND MOBILITY/CYCLE 
STORAGE FACILITIES (CONSERVATION AREA) (amended by plans received 
27.05.2020) (description amended 08.06.2020) 
17A High Street  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 1BX     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The application site forms the upper floor and rear of number 17A High Street, a two-storey post-
war building. The first floor is currently vacant but until recently was in use as a snooker club with 
the ground floor retail unit recently occupied by 'Bon Marche'. To the rear of the site is a service 
yard that is accessed from a service road running in a west-east direction from Clarence Road to 
North Cross Street, just north of the site.  
 
2. The site is flanked to the west by a four-storey hotel and ground floor retail unit. To the east the 
site adjoins a similar two-storey building comprising an amusement centre to the ground floor with 
flats above. The site fronts the pedestrianised section of the High Street. The site is located within 
the designated Town Centre and the High Street Conservation Area and some 30m to the north is 
the Grade II Listed Building, the Fox Public House on North Street.  
 
3. Planning permission is sought for a change of use of the first floor from snooker club (a Class D2 
use) to form four flats and to erect two additional storeys to form five additional flats (nine flats in 
total) with associated refuse and mobility/cycle storage facilities.  
 
4. The works to the first floor would include the insertion of Oriel style angled windows in the west 
facing elevation that would face rearwards towards the adjacent hotel and associated car park. 
Internally the space would be converted to a two-bedroom flat with storage space. One further two-
bedroom and two, one-bedroom flat would be provided at first floor level. The existing windows to 
the front of the building would be altered and new windows would be added in the rear elevation. 
 
5. The proposed additional two storeys would be flush and align with the front elevation of the 
Travelodge and would be stepped to the rear. The proposed windows at second and third floor level 
would be on the front and rear elevations. At first floor level, four one bedroom dwellings would be 
provided, with flats on the rear having access to modest roof terraces and at third floor level one 
three-bedroom flat with a roof terrace would be provided.  
 
6. The proposed additional storeys would be of a modern appearance with detailing intended to 
complement that of the adjacent hotel. It would be finished in white render with areas of cladding. 
 
7. The one bedroom flats would vary in size between 39 and 60 square metres, with the two-
bedroom flats extending to 53 square metres in size. The proposal would be accessed via two 
existing entrances and stairs, one from the High Street and the second from the rear service yard. 
The proposal also includes the provision of facilities for the storage of bins and cycles that would be 
located to the rear of the existing building. At first floor level, each of the nine flats would have 
access to an additional storage area. No designated off-road car parking is proposed. The amended 
plans received 27.05.2020 reduced the proposed number of flats from 12 to 9. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
K.8432/2 (77/14633/PA) - change of use first floor to billiard and snooker centre - permitted 
15.11.1977 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 36 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
K.8432/3 (86/14634/PA) - installation of new shopfront - permitted 24.01.1986 
 
K.8432/5 (00/00262/FULL) - installation of new shopfront - permitted 21.12.2000 
 
19/00369/FULL - change of use of first floor from snooker club (Class D2) to form five flats and 
erection of two additional stories to provide 10 additional flats together with associated refuse and 
mobility/cycle storage facilities - withdrawn 22.11.2019 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 LP3  Spatial Strategy 
 LP4  The Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre 
 LP10  Design 
 LP11  Designated Heritage Assets including Listed Buildings, Scheduled Ancient Monuments 

and Registered Historic Parks & Gardens 
 LP12  Designated Heritage Assets: Conservation Areas 
 LP13  Locally Important Heritage Assets 
 LP16  Employment Land 
 LP22  Accessibility to New Development 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 LP24  Housing 
 LP27  Principal, District and Neighbourhood Centres 
 LP28  Uses in Centres 
 LP39  Water Resources 
 LP42  International and Nationally Important Habitats 
 LP44  Protecting Species and Other Features of Nature Conservation Importance 
 LP46  Pollution Control 
 LP47  Contamination and Unstable Land 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Waterfront and Town Centre:  Supplementary Planning Document:  

March 2018 
 Solent Special Protection Areas Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol April 2018 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019 
 
Particular obligations fall upon the Local Planning Authority in determining any application which 
might affect a listed building or its setting or a Conservation Area. Section 66 of The Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas Act 1990 (as amended) places a duty on the authority to have 
"special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses". Section 72 of the same act requires 
that the authority pay: "special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character 
or appearance of a conservation area". 
 
Consultations 
  
 Natural England No objection subject to mitigation measures. 

 
Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy - Since 
this application will result in a net increase in 
residential accommodation, impacts to the 
coastal Special Protection Area(s) and 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 37 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

Ramsar site(s) may result from increased 
recreational pressure. Gosport Borough 
Council has measures in place to manage 
these potential impacts through the agreed 
strategic solution (SRMP Definitive Strategy) 
which we consider to be ecologically sound.  
  
Subject to the appropriate financial 
contribution being secured, Natural England 
is satisfied that the proposal will mitigate 
against the potential recreational impacts of 
the development on the site(s). It is Natural 
England's view that the Solent Mitigation 
Recreation Strategy Contribution adequately 
mitigates the effects of the development on 
potential recreational impacts on the 
designated sites. 
 
Nutrient Neutrality - with regard to 
deterioration of the water environment, 
Natural England is aware that your authority 
is working with Hampshire and Isle of Wight 
Wildlife Trust (HIWWT) to provide a 
reduction in nitrogen elsewhere in the 
catchment.  
 
If the applicant has provided written 
confirmation that they will contribute towards 
offsetting to the value of 1kg of nitrates and 
the Council, as competent authority, is 
satisfied that the approach will ensure the 
proposal is nutrient neutral and the 
necessary measures can be fully secured; 
Natural England raises no further concerns. 

  
 Southern Water No objection. 
  
 The Gosport Society Objection - impact of poor design on 

character and appearance of Conservation 
Area. 

  
 Crime Prevention & Design Changes should be made to the design and 

parking to reduce the potential for crime and 
anti-social behaviour. 

  
 Hampshire Fire And Rescue Service No objection. 
  
 HCC Ecology No objection subject to Bio-diversity 

enhancements being conditioned. 
  
 HCC Education Office No objection. 
  
 Local Highway Authority No highway objection. 
  
 HCC Local Lead Flood Authority No objection. 
  
 Building Control No response received. 
  



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 38 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 Housing Services Strategic Affordable housing only required on 
development of 10 units or more. 

  
 Streetscene Waste & Cleansing Adequate waste storage has been provided. 

A flush threshold, unobstructed pathway to 
collection point/service is required. 

  
 HCC Landscape Planning & Heritage No objection. 
 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
Nil 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. The main issues are, therefore, whether: the proposal is acceptable in principle, the impact in 
design terms and on the character and appearance of heritage assets, whether the proposal is 
acceptable in amenity terms, whether there is sufficient parking and any impact on protected 
species and habitats. 
 
2. The site is located within the Urban Area Boundary and designated Town Centre where Policies 
LP4 and LP28 and paragraph 85(f) of the National Planning Policy Framework encourage the use 
of uppers floors for residential purposes. The Waterfront and Town Centre SPD promote the 
provision of additional dwellings in the Town Centre. The principle of both the conversion of the 
existing building and the construction of additional floors to provide further flats are therefore 
acceptable in principle, subject to compliance with other policies in the Local Plan. 
 
3. Policy LP28 also requires that any upper floor residential development: 'does not affect the 
function (including servicing) of any commercial units; does not have a detrimental effect on 
adjoining uses; and, includes separate independent and appropriate access to serve the residential 
accommodation'. In this case the existing first floor has separate access points to both the front and 
rear of the site that are suitable for residential access and separate storage of refuse. The proposal 
would not have an impact on the operation of existing neighbouring uses. The proposal would 
introduce a need to provide facilities for the storage of cycles and waste. The submitted plans 
indicate that these would be provided to the rear of the shop unit in an area of hardstanding that 
currently serves as the service area for the shop. The cycle and bin storage facilities shown are 
adequate to meet the needs of the proposal. The plans also detail an area of storage for the retail 
unit. The proposal would comply with Policy LP28 of the Local Plan. 
 
4. The existing building dates from the 1970's and is set in a prominent location on the northern side 
of the High Street within the Conservation Area. The existing building is architecturally 
undistinguished and makes a limited contribution to the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area.  
 
5. The proposed High Street elevation, due to its height, alignment with the principal elevation of the 
existing hotel, similar window fenestration and roof height would be a positive addition to the rhythm 
of the street scene and would enhance the character and appearance of the High Street 
Conservation Area and setting of the Listed Building. A condition could be imposed to secure the 
submission of material samples to ensure build quality. This would accord with Policies LP10, LP11 
and LP12 of the Local Plan and Design SPD.  
 
6. The proposed rear and side elevations would be simpler in design terms with fewer architectural 
details than the proposed front elevation. Although there would be some features of interest, such 
as roof terraces and oriel windows, it is considered that the subservience of this rear elevation 
would be acceptable in this context and the proposed features would be modest additions to the 
proposed building. This is considered to be acceptable and would preserve the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area and setting of the Listed Building. This would accord with 
Policies LP10, LP11 and LP12 of the Local Plan and Design SPD.  



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 39 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
7. No windows are proposed on the eastern elevation at either first, second or third floor level to 
prevent sterilising the adjacent site from future development, which is appropriate and in 
accordance with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan.  
 
8. The proposed first floor Oriel windows in the west facing elevation of the development would face 
towards the hotel; but, given their off-set orientation in a northern direction, it is considered that this 
relationship would not unduly prejudice the operation of the hotel from overlooking in accordance 
with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan.  
 
9. The outlook from the Oriel style windows proposed for the western elevation at first floor level, 
given their relationship with the adjacent hotel and orientation, would provide adequate outlook and 
access to light. This would provide an acceptable standard of accommodation for future occupiers. 
The proximity of windows on the hotel, due to their off-set position, would not harm the privacy of 
future occupiers and would not conflict with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan.  
 
10. The proposed flats vary in size but meet or exceed the minimum sizes set out in the Design 
SPD and the Nationally Described Spaces Standards published by Central Government. Each of 
the dwellings would have single aspect rooms, providing acceptable living standards with regards to 
outlook, access to light and privacy in accordance with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan.  
 
11. The Design SPD recommends that the design and layout of residential development should 
ensure that reasonable visual privacy is provided for the residents within dwellings. Spacing 
between dwellings should allow for satisfactory space around the building to be provided to prevent 
cramped and congested layouts. Where properties face one another, across a street or public 
space, the Design SPD does not recommend a minimum distance separation and each case should 
be determined on its own merits.  
 
12. Due to the distance separation of some 33m with residential dwellings to the north, there would 
not be a harmful impact on amenity with regards to loss of light, outlook, privacy or increased sense 
of enclosure. With dwellings on the southern side of High Street and the 19m distance separation 
across public highway, it is considered that given the established built nature of the Town Centre to 
three storeys or more, there would not be a harmful impact on amenity with regards to loss of light, 
outlook, privacy or increased sense of enclosure. This is acceptable and would accord with Policy 
LP10 of the Local Plan and Design SPD. 
 
13. As the development is within an established commercial area with street lighting, the proposed 
dwellings would not result in harmful increase in light spillage and would afford an acceptable level 
of natural surveillance, in accordance with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 
2029. 
 
14. Due to the proximity of neighbouring properties and the close proximity of Portsmouth Harbour 
Special Protection Area, the demolition and construction is likely to give rise to increased dust and 
dirt during works. For these reasons, it is considered necessary to secure details on how the 
construction and environmental impact of the development would be managed. The importance of 
the High Street in serving businesses and homes also results in the necessity to reduce the impact 
on the local highways network and parking. As such, a pre-commencement condition requiring 
details to be submitted is necessary. The applicant has agreed to the imposition of this condition. 
This is acceptable and in accordance with Policies LP10, LP22, LP23, LP44, LP46 and LP47 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
15. The proposal does not include the provision of any parking and the site is not capable of 
providing any. The applicant contends that the as the site is located within the Town Centre future 
occupiers would have easy access both to public transport and to a wide range of services and 
amenities. Given the aspiration of the Local Plan to provide increasing housing in the Town Centre 
and having regard to its location very close to a range of local shops, services, public car parks and 
public transport, it is considered that a parking free development would not give rise to any 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 40 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

demonstrable harm in amenity or highway terms. The proposal would therefore not conflict with 
Policy LP23 of the Local Plan or with the Parking SPD. 
 
16. The submitted drawings indicate the provision of facilities for the storage of up to 12 bicycles to 
the rear of the retail unit in a secure and weatherproof area. These facilities are adequate and 
would meet the requirements of the Parking SPD. This would accord with Policy LP23 of the Local 
Plan and Parking SPD.  
 
17. Access to the site is via an existing and modestly recessed entrance on High Street and via an 
existing service road to the rear. The Crime Prevention Officer has indicated that the High Street 
entrance doorway should be reduced to a single doorway and moved closer to the principal 
elevation, rather than recessed. As this existing entrance would remain unchanged, it is not 
considered reasonable to impose a condition or to seek an amended plan in this regard. However, it 
is noted that as this is likely to be an active entrance way, it may be less likely to attract anti-social 
behaviour. A condition requiring lighting details to be submitted for the front and rear entrances is 
required to reduce the fear of crime and the potential for anti-social behaviour for future occupiers 
entering/leaving the property at unsocial hours.  
 
18. The submitted drawings also indicate the provision of facilities for the storage of refuse and 
recyclable materials to the rear of the retail unit. These facilities are of an adequate size to meet the 
requirements for the development proposed and their clear separation from the retail store is 
acceptable. There is also sufficient space to maneuverer the bins when full. This part of the 
development would accord with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan.  
 
19. The proposal will introduce additional dwellings which is likely to result in increased recreational 
activity on the coast and a consequential impact on the protected species for which the Portsmouth 
Harbour SPA, the Solent and Southampton Water SPA and the Chichester and Langstone 
Harbours SPA are designated. To address this impact, a contribution towards appropriate 
mitigation, in accordance with the Gosport Bird Disturbance Mitigation Protocol, is required and this 
has been paid. There is no evidence that the site supports notable or endangered species and none 
are a threat as a result of the development, however, a condition requiring appropriate biodiversity 
enhancement is considered appropriate.  
 
20. Natural England has also raised concerns that new dwellings are causing increased levels of 
nitrogen and phosphorus input to the water environment in the Solent with evidence that these 
nutrients are causing eutrophication at European and internationally designated habitat sites and 
additional mitigation measures will be required to offset any increases in nitrogen discharges that 
would result from the proposals. Natural England advise that proposals for new residential 
development should achieve nitrogen neutrality to avoid harm to these sites.  
 
21. The applicant has provided a proposed mitigation strategy which involves off-setting the 
increase in nitrogen at the site, by a corresponding reduction in nitrogen elsewhere in the 
subcatchment. In this instance the land indicated as available as mitigation is on the Isle of Wight 
and will be owned and managed by the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Wildlife Trust (HIWWT) which 
will be removed from agricultural use and managed as such for the lifetime of the development.  
The applicant will make a financial contribution to the HIWWT to purchase land credits to an 
equivalent level to offset the amount of nitrogen produced by the development (nitrogen budget).  
The HIWWT has provided written confirmation that subject to finalising the contractual 
arrangements, the Wildlife Trust has reserved an area sufficient to mitigate 1 kg of nitrates 
generated, offsetting the proposed development. Natural England has reviewed the Habitats 
Regulations Assessment/Appropriate Assessment and is satisfied with these proposed mitigation 
measures. The full details of these measures would be secured by planning condition, along with 
securing measures limiting water usage within the property to 110ltr per person per day. This is an 
acceptable approach to mitigating the proposed development and as such it would not cause harm 
to European and internationally designated protected sites in accordance with Policies LP42 and 
LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 41 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning with 
the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
Existing Ground and Location Plan Rev B 
Proposed Ground and First Floor Rev D 
Proposed 2nd and 3rd Floor Plans Rev D 
Existing and Proposed Roof Plans Rev D 
Proposed Elevations Rev E 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policies LP10 and LP11 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  a) No development shall commence until a Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP) for the demolition and construction of the development, hereby permitted, has been 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  
b) The development must be carried out in accordance with the approved details for the duration of 
the works. 
Reason - To safeguard the amenity of occupiers of adjoining properties, highway and pedestrian 
safety, the character and appearance of the area and to prevent pollution in accordance with 
Policies LP10, LP22, LP44, LP46 and LP47 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the 
NPPF. 
 
 4.  a) Construction above slab level shall not commence until details of all external facing and 
roofing materials shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason - To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory, and to comply 
with Policies LP10 and LP12 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 5.  The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until: 
a) a water efficiency calculation in accordance with the Government's National Calculation 
Methodology for assessing water efficiency in new dwellings has been undertaken which 
demonstrates that no more than 110 litres of water per person per day shall be consumed within the 
development, and this calculation has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local 
Planning Authority; and, 
b) a mitigation package demonstrating that any additional nutrient input arising from the 
development will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of the protected European Sites, has 
been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
c) the water efficiency and nutrient mitigation measures have been implemented in accordance with 
the details approved under a) and b) of this condition. 
Reason: To prevent increased discharge of nitrogen into the water environment of European 
designated nature conservation sites in The Solent to comply with the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017 and Policies LP42 and LP44 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029. 
 
 6.  a) The development, hereby permitted, shall not be occupied until a detailed scheme of security 
lighting for the front and rear entrances and refuse/cycles stores has been submitted to and 
approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) Any security lighting shall thereafter be installed and retained in accordance with approved 
details. 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 42 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

Reason - In order to protect the amenities of the area and to reduce anti-social behaviour and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 7.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until biodiversity enhancement 
measures have been provided in accordance with plans and details that shall first be submitted to 
and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  
b) The approved biodiversity enhancement measures shall be permanently retained thereafter. 
Reason - To ensure that biodiversity enhancements are provided as part of the development in 
accordance with Policy LP41 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan, 2011-2029. 
 
 8.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the facilities for the storage 
and parking of cycles shown on the approved plans have been provided. 
b) The cycle storage and parking facilities shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - In order to ensure that adequate cycle storage is provided to promote and encourage 
cycling as an alternative to use of the private motor car in compliance with Policy LP23 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 9.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the facilities for the storage 
and collection of refuse and recyclable materials shown on the approved plans have been provided. 
b) The waste storage and collection facilities shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - To ensure that adequate provision is made for the storage of refuse and recyclable 
materials and to comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 43 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 





Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 45 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 05.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 20/00138/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr J & Mrs M Ainsworth   
DATE REGISTERED: 16.04.2020 

 
REMOVAL OF FRONT BOUNDARY WALL AND CONSTRUCTION OF DROPPED KERB 
TO PROVIDE VEHICULAR ACCESS ONTO CLASSIFIED ROAD (amended plan and 
additional highways information received 30.07.2020) 
16 Marine Parade East  Lee-On-The-Solent  Hampshire  PO13 9LA     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. This application relates to a two-storey detached dwellinghouse located on the north-east side of 
Marine Parade East. The property is in the Marine Parade Area of Special Character. To the rear of 
the property is a garage that is accessed via a service road running between Beech Road and Pier 
Street.  
 
2. Planning permission is sought for the part removal of the front boundary wall and the construction 
of a dropped kerb to provide vehicular access onto Marine Parade East (B3333) which forms the 
main arterial route through Lee-on-the-Solent. The forecourt of the property measures 
approximately 6m deep by 7.5m wide with the application form indicating permeable block paving 
would be used. The existing front boundary wall measures approximately 0.7 metres high. The 
highway outside of the property is the subject of parking restrictions in the form of double yellow 
lines on either side of the road and within some 28m to the south-east of the side is a pedestrian 
crossing.   
 
3. In the surrounding area, a number of dwellings have existing vehicular accesses onto the B3333. 
The adjacent property no.14/15 has a dropped crossing sufficient for 1 vehicle and retains part of 
the forecourt and boundary wall to prevent two vehicles parking off-road. Similarly, this is the case 
with no.12/13 although given the expanse of the dropped crossing; it is likely that two vehicles 
would be able to park.   
 
4. In support of the application, the applicant has submitted: a site plan indicating the dropped kerb 
and forecourt area, a statement that includes photos of adjacent properties with dropped crossings 
and reference to the Council's parking standards that indicate a three bedroom dwelling should 
have two car parking spaces and the existing property does not have any. It is noted, however, that 
a garage is shown on the plans to the rear of the site. The supporting information also refers to the 
officer's report in permission 14/00035/FULL 13 Marine Parade East that stated: '…The proposed 
area of hardstanding will not allow cars to enter the site, turn and egress the site in a forward gear 
meaning cars will have to reverse out onto the adjacent highway. In view of the height of the 
boundary wall and the substantial parking restrictions in the immediate area, clear visibility along 
MPE will be maintained at all times. In addition, taking into account the nearby crossing to the south 
which acts as a natural traffic calming measure and the 30mph speed limit in the locality, in this 
instance, cars reversing out of this site will not have a harmful impact on highway and pedestrian 
safety'. 
 
5. The applicant has submitted a Highways Technical Note by a Highways Consultant and a revised 
drawing in support of their application. The amended drawing shows the retention of a section of the 
existing front boundary wall approximately 2.5 metres wide to the western side of the site frontage. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
Application site 
Nil 
 
14 Marine Parade East  
06/00068/FULL- erection of two detached garages - permitted 06.03.2006 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 46 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
13 Marine Parade East 
14/00035/FULL- creation of vehicular access from Classified Road and provision of hardstanding - 
permitted 24.03.2014 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 LP3  Spatial Strategy 
 LP10  Design 
 LP14  Marine Parade Area of Special Character 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Marine Parade Area of Special Character:  Supplementary Planning 

Document:  May 2007 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019 
 
Consultations 
  
 Local Highway Authority Whilst it would be preferential for vehicles to 

both access and egress from the site in a 
forward gear, the Highways Authority 
considers an objection difficult to justify for 
the following reasons:  
- The two neighbouring properties already 
have vehicle crossover drop kerbs, with no 
space to turn within site to allow for forward 
gear access and egress. There are no 
known incidents regarding these crossovers.  
- Visibility is good on a long stretch of 
straight road, with parking restrictions (single 
yellow line) retaining this during peak hours 
when flows might be higher; 
- This section of road is 30mph, so speeds 
will be relatively low and with the visibility, 
conflict unlikely; and 
- The pedestrian crossing to the east will 
provided breaks in traffic making it even 
easier to safely pull out during peak hours. 
 
No highway safety objection. 

 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
1 letter of support 
Issues raised:- 
- the dropped kerb would enhance appearance of the neighbourhood 
- it would also improve security for vehicles. 
 
 
 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 47 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

Principal Issues 
 
1. Notwithstanding the supporting information, each application must be assessed on its own merits 
having regard to all relevant material considerations. The standard requirement for any access onto 
a Classified Road is that the turning provision for a car must be provided within the application 
property and the vehicle should be able to leave the property in a forward gear (Local Highway 
Authority Standing Advice). Since planning permission 14/00035/FULL was granted, the Council 
adopted the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029 in October 2015.  The main issues to be 
considered in the determination of this application are, therefore, whether adequate provision is 
made for a vehicle to enter and leave the site in a forward direction and whether there would be an 
impact on the safety or convenience of users of the adjacent highway. 
 
2. Given the highly trafficked nature of Marine Parade East, it is imperative that in the interests of 
both the safety and convenience of users of the adjacent highway, any vehicles entering/leaving the 
site are able to do so in a forward direction. In order to meet this requirement, vehicles must be able 
to turn within the site. The Parking SPD requires parking spaces to be a minimum length of 
4800mm, and 5000mm where there are adjacent boundaries. This is to ensure that typical sized 
family cars (e.g. a Ford Mondeo Hatchback which measures 4731mm in length or a Vauxhall 
Insignia which is 4842mm long) can be accommodated within them. Policy LP23 (layout of sites and 
parking) requires that adequate provision is made for an appropriate range of vehicles e.g. a 
domestic car for a house and a HGV for an industrial park, to access a site, manoeuvre within it and 
turn around in a safe and convenient manner, so that vehicles can enter and exit in a forward gear. 
It must be noted that the size of vehicle using the proposed access could not be satisfactory 
controlled now or in the future.  
 
3. The Adopted Parking SPD also requires: 'At all development served by Classified Road (A, B and 
C class roads), and other with potentially hazardous access, sufficient space must be provided to 
enable the required number and type of vehicles to parking and turn independently and enter the 
highway in a forward direction'.  
 
4. Paragraph 108 (b) of the NPPF states: 'in assessing … specific applications for development, it 
should be ensured that: … safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users'. 
Paragraph 109 goes onto state: 'Development should only be prevented or refused on highways 
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety…'  
 
5. In order to demonstrate on-site turning, this should be in the form of accurate tracking diagrams 
using a suitably sized design vehicle (4.8m in length would cover the majority of vehicles in 
common domestic use), with sufficient margins adjacent to boundaries to replicate what could be 
achieved in a real-world situation without undue shuffling being necessary.  A simple three-point 
manoeuvre is likely to be the most appropriate and would not create undue inconvenience. All 
turning manoeuvres should take place within the curtilage of the property.  
  
6. No tracking plots have been provided to demonstrate access/egress in a forward gear would be 
possible, contrary to the requirements of Policy LP23 and the Parking SPD.  Even if this were 
possible for appropriately sized vehicles for a domestic property, i.e. vehicles such as a Ford 
Mondeo, due to the constrained nature of the site this would require a number of onerous and likely 
full-lock turning manoeuvres to be undertaken in order to avoid making contact with the walls, which 
further highlights the limited site layout of the development proposed. A vehicle would also need to 
drive very close to both boundary walls and front wall of the dwellinghouse in order to manoeuvre 
into and out of the space with very little margin for error.  Any manoeuvres requiring a high degree 
of vehicle shuffling is inconvenient and could lead to vehicles using the footway as an additional 
turning area, or simply reversing on/off the highway. If a vehicle entered the site in a forward gear 
and then reversed out, the level of visibility would be reduced, and a large proportion of a car would 
be within the highway before the driver could see if it was safe to enter the carriageway. If a vehicle 
was reversed onto the proposed driveway there would be a period of time where the driver could be 
waiting - with the vehicle in the carriageway - for a suitable gap in the traffic before this manoeuvre 
could be undertaken, which would be detrimental to the free flow of traffic, and not be appropriate 
on this main arterial route in the Borough. 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 48 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
7. With a full width dropped crossing, as shown on the submitted plans, there would be the physical 
space for parking two vehicles side-by-side, however, in the absence of an adequate turning area 
this would require vehicles to reverse either onto or off the driveway. Although a condition could be 
imposed to restrict this to one vehicle, this would be difficult to enforce.  
 
8. In support of their application, the applicant submitted a Highways Technical Note that notes that 
no.14 has a single front parking space and nos. 12/13 have whole front forecourt areas for parking. 
On Google Images, it is shown that it is not possible to turn a vehicle in either site and in the case of 
nos. 12/13 it is stated: "It is evident from this image that it is not possible to turn a vehicle in either 
site and that in the case of Numbers 12 and 13, were the vehicles to park perpendicular to the 
carriageway, this forecourt could easily accommodate 2 cars". 
 
9. The supporting statement indicates the applicant intends to replicate what has been permitted at 
nos. 12/13 to allow a dropped footway crossing to allow safe passage of vehicles over the footway. 
It is noted in the above statement from the applicant, that they acknowledge that on-site turning is 
not possible in adjacent sites. Given the similarities and the proposal intends to replicate the 
adjacent crossing, it is considered that this is in clear conflict with Policy LP23 and the Parking SPD.  
 
10. The statement goes onto draw attention to paragraphs 3.2 and 3.5 and the Local Highways 
Authorities Standing Advice:  
 

Paragraph 3.2 of the Standing Advice says "The Local Highway Authority requires that any 
development of 2 - 5 dwellings using a shared vehicular access from the highway is able to 
facilitate vehicles entering and exiting from the development onto the highway in a forward gear." 
 
Paragraph 3.5 goes onto say "Please note that the LHA advice is that there is no requirement for 
vehicles to access and leave the highway in a forward gear where a vehicular access point serves 
a single dwelling." 

 
11. However, it is noted that this part of the applicant's statement refers to the Standing advice for 
new dwellings seeking access to a highway, not existing dwellings seeking access onto a Classified 
Road. The Local Planning Authority considers that the points raised by the applicant above are not 
relevant to this application. This is further emphasised by the applicant at paragraph 4.2 of the 
Standing Advice: 
 

"For single residential developments, turning areas will not be required unless it is considered by 
the local planning authority to be necessary for the internal operation of the development (e.g. a 
resident would be required to reverse down a driveway for a considerable distance)." 

 
12. The Standing Advice requirements as detailed in the "Summary Table" on page 4 show that 
applications for new / altered accesses (householder applications) must be referred to the Local 
Highway Authority for comment, and that being the case the Standing Advice does not apply in 
respect of this application. 
 
13. For the reasons highlighted above, the Local Planning Authority disagrees with the applicant's 
interpretation of the Standing Advice. In respect of dropped crossings there is clear guidance for 
applicants on the County Council's website that: 'the standard requirement for any access onto a 
classified road is that the turning provision for a car must be provided within the application property 
and the vehicle should be able to leave the property in a forward gear'. In the absence of tracking 
diagrams (as requested on 24.07.2020 and informed at enquiry stage 18.12.2019) to demonstrate 
that on-site turning can be reasonably achieved, the development is unacceptable and contrary to 
Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029 and the Parking SPD.  
 
14. The Local Planning Authority consider, in this instance, that on-site turning facilities are required 
to ensure that the safety and convenience of users of the adjacent highway is maintained. The 
applicant appears to accept that this cannot be provided. The proposal would therefore prejudice 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 49 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

highway safety and the convenience of highway users and is contrary to Policy LP23 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029.  
 
15. The applicants in the supporting statement have indicated that the approval of the parking 
spaces would result in an overall increase in parking. Notwithstanding whether residents use the 
available garage block available on the rear service road, this is not considered sufficient to 
outweigh the harm outlined above.  
 
16. The Local Planning Authority consider the development to be harmful and prejudicial to highway 
safety, contrary to the Local Highway Authorities Standing Advice and Policy LP23 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029. In reaching this decision, regard has been given to the comments 
of the Local Highways Authority, as a consultee, however, it is concluded that there are no 
conditions that could be imposed to overcome the harm as the development would have an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety and the convenience of highway users and is contrary to 
Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029 and the aims and objectives of the 
NPPF. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Refuse 
 
For the following reason(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The proposed development fails to demonstrate that vehicles can safely access and egress the 
site in a forward gear, as adequate provision for the manoeuvring of vehicles clear of the highway 
has not been demonstrated, which is likely to result in vehicles reversing out onto Marine Parade 
East (B3333), interrupting the free flow of traffic in a manner that would be prejudicial to the safety 
and convenience of highway users. As such, the proposal is contrary to Policy LP23 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 50 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 51 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 06.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 20/00194/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr Tony Boxall   
DATE REGISTERED: 10.06.2020 

 
ERECTION OF DORMERS ON EAST, WEST AND NORTH ELEVATIONS 
56 Military Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 3BX     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The application site is located on the eastern side of Military Road. The property is a two storey 
semi-detached dwellinghouse constructed of red brick and uPVC windows and doors under a 
hipped, tiled roof. At the front of the property is a driveway which is partially enclosed by fencing. At 
the rear of the property is an outbuilding which is in a garden which is 10m long and enclosed by 
fencing. Beyond the fencing are 2 semi-detached bungalows, 56A and 56B Military Road, which 
were approved in 2009. The property to the south, 58 Military Road is attached to the application 
property and the building to the north, Redlea Court, is 10m away from the application property. The 
properties in the area are of similar size and design, some of which have had alterations to them.  
 
2. The proposal is for the erection of dormers on the east, west and north facing elevations of the 
dwelling. The dormer on the north (side) elevation would be 3m wide, 1.9m deep and have an 
eaves height of 1.5m and a maximum height of 3.9m. There would be 2 dormers on the east (rear) 
elevation both would be 1.6m wide, 2m deep have an eaves height of 1.5m and a maximum height 
of 2.6m. The dormer on the west (front) elevation would be 1.6m wide, 1.4m deep, have an eaves 
height of 1.5m and a maximum height of 2m. All dormers would have hipped roofs and be finished 
in matching materials. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
09/00304/FULL - erection of 2no.one bedroom aged - person bungalows on land to the rear of 56 
Military Road and widened drop kerb access from Classified Road (c412) - permitted 09.10.09 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 LP10  Design 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019 
 
Consultations 
  
 Environmental Health No objection. 
 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
1 letter of objection 
Issues raised:- 
- loss of privacy 
 
 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 52 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

Principal Issues 
 
1. The proposed dormer windows on the east (rear) elevation must considered in the context of the 
legislation within the General Permitted Development (England) Order 2015 which would allow 
them to be constructed without planning permission.  Whilst included within this application, given 
this fallback position any issues relating to their design or impact on amenity need to be considered 
in the context that they could be built without any approval from the Local Planning Authority.  The 
main issues are, therefore, the acceptability of the design of the front (west) and side (north) 
dormers, the impact the proposal would have on the visual amenity of the local area and the 
amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties and the provision of parking. 
 
2. The design of all the dormer windows are considered appropriate to the scale of the 
dwellinghouse and would not dominate any of the roof slopes, being set off of the side boundaries, 
ridge and eaves. The proposed siting and design of the dormers would provide a symmetrical 
appearance and are considered acceptable. The materials used can be controlled by condition, but 
are indicated to match. The proposal is therefore considered acceptable in design terms and 
complies with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
3. The dormer window on the western (front) elevation would overlook the road and property's 
driveway and the dormer window on the northern (side) elevation would overlook the driveway and 
vegetation which is along the shared boundary with Redlea Court. Given the relationship of these 
dormers with neighbouring properties, they would not result in any loss of light, outlook, or privacy 
to the occupiers of neighbouring properties. These elements of the proposal are considered 
acceptable in amenity grounds and would therefore comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
4. The dormer windows on the eastern (rear) elevation would overlook the bungalows to the rear of 
the site, situated 10m away, and would give rise to a degree of overlooking and consequential loss 
of privacy contrary to Policy LP10. However, the harm to the residential amenities of the occupiers 
of the properties at the rear must to be balanced against the fallback position, which would allow 
these dormers to be built without planning permission. In this instance, the fallback position is 
considered to undermine any potential reason for refusal on amenity grounds. The imposition of a 
planning condition requiring the use of obscure and/or fixed glazing would similarly be considered 
unreasonable, given that fallback position would allow both clear glazed and opening windows to be 
used.  
 
5. The proposed development increases the number of bedrooms at the property from 4 to 5, 
however, there is no requirement under the Parking SPD to provide any additional parking spaces. 
As such the proposal complied with Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning with 
the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development, hereby permitted, must be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans:  
Proposed elevations, Proposed Floor plans 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP1 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 53 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 3.  The materials to be used shall match in type, colour and texture those on the existing dwelling 
unless otherwise agreed, in writing, with the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason - To ensure satisfactory visual relationship of the new development to the existing, and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 



Regulatory Board:  2nd September 2020 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SEM-24.08.20 Page 54 of 54 DC/UNI-form Template 

 


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2020
	6 Licensing Policy Review
	GBC Draft Licensing Policy

	7 Report of the Development Manager

